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Financial Summary

B HME

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS hFERBHE

For the year ended 31 December ~ EZ 12 A31 AILEE 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Operating Results s

Gross profit margin (%) EFE (%) 30.1 304 21.7 32.8 40.4
Operating profit margin (%) LR TIE (%) 4.0 3.1 2.3 13.2 19.8
Net profit margin (%) (Note 1)~ FH|= (%) (#1z#1) 2.2 1.9 07 10.7 15.1
Return on equity (%) Bl (%) 1.2 1.0 03 6.7 22.1
Financial Position BN

Total assets (HK$'000) BEE (TAT) 395,154 390,719 352,779 329,045 197,409
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBReZEY (TAT)

(HK$000) 37,975 81,666 79,383 76,928 15,584
Total bank borrowing (HK$'000)  $RYTEF@%E (F57T) 17,000 - - - 28,205
Total equity attributable to KRR

equity shareholders [ElhiExeE (TEr)

of the Company (HK$'000) 307,804 311,412 303,786 306,869 135,839
Financial Ratios g 3n e
Current ratio (times) MENELBI (15) 2.2 2.8 5.2 8.4 1.45
Quick ratio (times) EENLBI (15) 2.0 25 48 74 1.14
Debt to asset ratio (%) (Note 2)  EEBER (%) (422 15.9 13.9 105 6.7 312
Turnover Ratios A=
Inventory turnover (days) FEAS (/) 63 63 70 63 54
Debtors turnover (days) FEWERFEE (R) 82 82 84 77 62
Creditors turnover (days) FERERFAE (B) 65 69 69 38 36
Operating cycle (days) meEE (8) 80 76 85 102 80
Notes: et -

(1) Net profit represents profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the (1)  JFFIEARR i mREEEF o
Company.

(2)  Debt to asset ratio is calculated as the Group’s the liabilities over total assets (2) BEEBEFEAEBEEHRERAGEESE
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. K (M%7 4 B AR 3 & BT ) ©

5




S
Q.
)
e
©
S
c
c
<
3
o
N
W
W
Kn

Financial Summary

M=

%
3
8
®
El
(=3
3 3 A
g ] 22 8
Q
oE
o
L0 -
- el o) ~
3 S R Wi
VA ¢ B LRI YA ¢ |
= 0
o [N ~ 5% =
0 © - 5 9 ~
8 S W : I Y AN ¢ |
(O] .Imm )
o ¥
= [
P b = 5 9
AN [ PRIV = |
el
1K
22
e
BE S passssssaassory =X W
RE I aaE g E® £ YV ¢ |
gm N ._/A. «ﬁm -
lm = o =
af zH
.
©
>
&
L8
XX TRRIXXRIRT: | R TR RXIX XXX RXX XXX X XXXXY)
2 W z
B¢ B A VAN ¢ |
g
X N
L) 0 N
BOYYNYY ¢ B .
g WWWNWNYE < g
5 £
3 2
g &5 N s R
N oS © o
2 5 S g 8
& #l
- 3 S s SRR L XXX XXX XXX XAXY)
. s g Y Y YA
- ™
2 N A -
R & g g R § ~
BE ? Q # = S
] &
mz mz

2014 F15 Years

2012 2013

2011

2010

2014 F17 Years

2011 2012 2013

2010



The following is a summary of the consolidated statement of profit NTAREEZFEBRERRESMBERN
or loss and consolidated statement of financial position of the RIBE -
Group:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR mERER

LOSS
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
For the year ended 31 December =12 431 A LFE TEx THT THEL THT THL
Turnover B 165,359 160,841 157,373 190,433 199,224
Cost of sales HEKAK (115,510) (111,927) (113,755) (127,888) (118,765)
Gross Profit E)| 49,849 48,914 43,618 62,545 80,459
Other revenue Heplas 2,495 2,804 3,629 7,204 1,093
Other net (loss)/income it (E1B) MAFE (163) (1,278) (1,600) (373) 290
Distribution costs a1 (15,936) (16,921) (13,630) (12,788) (9,570)
Administrative expenses G (29,692) (28,542) (28,330) (31,389) (32,885)
Profit from operations R nF 6,553 4,977 3,687 25,199 39,387
Finance costs BB A (417) - - (261) (1,614)
Profit before taxation BRBLELRA 6,136 4977 3,687 24938 37,773
Income tax s (2,742) (2,064) (2,859) (4,516) (7,000)
Profit for the year FREF 3,394 2,913 828 20,422 30,773
Attributable to: T BIEE -
Equity shareholders KATERRR
of the Company 3,661 3,061 1,055 20,422 30,071
Non-controlling interests IR (267) (148) (227) - 702
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B HME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL maMBMRR R

POSITION
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December #12R318 TR THT THT THET TET
Non-current assets FRBEE 254,944 237,499 165,089 142,483 107,980
Fixed assets EEEE
- Property, plant and equipment  —#% « BE MR/ 211,874 189,179 122,651 107,540 98,139
- Lease prepayments —THEBRAK 33,052 33,878 33,543 4,395 4,285
Intangible assets BREE 7,666 6,018 6,668 7,463 4,511
Prepayment for fixed and EIE KBV EER
intangible assets BRFE 391 6,319 212 21,551 489
Deferred tax assets ERFHIBEE 1,961 2,105 2,015 1,534 556
Current assets RBEE 140,210 153,220 187,690 186,562 89,429
Inventories BrE 18,369 17,101 16,464 22,995 19,281
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H b e Y zioE 41,535 40,036 48,169 40,793 53,349
Current tax recoverable SIEEE I mpaE] 1,173 204 1,354 2,297 1,215
Cash and cash equivalents BeRHeZEY 37,975 81,666 79,383 76,928 15,584
Deposits with banks RITEEER 41,158 14,213 42,320 43,549 -
Total assets HEE 395,154 390,719 352,779 329,045 197,409




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL REMBRRER

POSITION
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December R12A318 TR THL THL THT THL
Current liabilities REAE 62,323 54,074 35,988 22,176 61,570
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNTIE 45,290 53,996 33,494 20,172 30,445
Bank borrowing RITER 17,000 - - - 28,205
Current tax payable A RTIE 33 78 2,494 2,004 2,920
Net current assets RBEEFE 77,887 99,146 151,702 164,386 27,859
Total assets less current BEERRBEE

liabilities 332,831 336,645 316,791 306,869 135,839
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL REMBRRER

POSITION
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December R12 4318 FERr FEr T TEL FEr
Non-current liabilities *RBEE 543 398 1,111 - -
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEEE 543 398 1,111 - -
Net assets EEFE 332,288 336,247 315,680 306,869 135,839
Capital and reserves BEAR 307,804 311,412 303,786 306,869 135,839
Share capital R AR 4,150 4,150 4,150 4,150 -
Reserves [#E 303,654 307,262 299,636 302,719 135,839
Total equity attributable to APFERRRIE
equity shareholders of {hRER A
the Company 307,804 311,412 303,786 306,869 135,839
Non-controlling interests FEERR RS 24,484 24,835 11,894 - -
Total equity ERaE 332,288 336,247 315,680 306,869 135,839
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual
report of KEE Holdings Company Limited for the year ended 31
December 2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year 2014, turnover of the Group slightly increased to
HK$165.36 million from HK$160.84 million in 2013, representing
a year-on-year growth of 2.8%. The Group also achieved
encouraging results which laid a solid foundation for development
in the future. Firstly, during the year 2014, turnover of flat knit ribs
products increased from HK$6.39 million in 2013 to HK$13.16
million, a growth of 105.9%, which has become the new business
growth point of the Group. Secondly, in 2014, the Group started
cooperation with 17 new brands, among which, 4 brands were
domestic brands, and 13 brands were overseas brands. As at the
end of 2014, we had cooperation with 117 brands, among which,
39 brands were domestic brands, and 78 brands were overseas
brands.

In addition, we have continually been strengthening the production
management and cost control, and making great improvements
in aspects such as personnel management, wastage reduction,
production efficiency and optimization of production processes,
which helped to reduce cost of production. Therefore, profit
attributable to equity Shareholders in 2014 increased by 19.6% to
HK$3.66 million from HK$3.06 million in 2013.

AANBRREZD  MAREZHEIZERER
NEEE2014F 12 A1 BILFEHFR -

E3 o)

20144 + N B & % 5 H2013F 1
1.6084 (BB T E ML= 1.6536 BB T 1&F
ER2.8% B - KMETSHE A EHR
BTAIEMMAE  AUEHNRTRRETHE
Mo B 2014 FIEHBNERNEEES
20136 /639 B E TR F1,316 BT -
#R105.9% ' NAREBEFEFILRE -
HOR - 722014 - FRAPIBCT) B 17 {37 dn b8
EFREE - HP4EEANRE - 13 @
Mg o BIER 2014 FFK - HME117ER
[ A e - R 39EEAMME - 78 EEIND
hE o

BEAN - AT DNoR A EE TR AR A
YRAZER  RDER - £ERERE(L

EEIZEFEEGERES EBRDEE
BRAR o BRIt + 2014 F 89 AN B4 2 AR R B (G
S F B 2013F #3068 8 LI K 19.6% &
366 EBTT °
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ERHRE

We constantly hold a sound fund and healthy debt to asset ratio
to provide a solid foundation for sustained and rapid business

development, and maintain a stable dividend policy.

OUTLOOK

In 2015, as affected by the continuous effect of the global financial
crisis, the weak recovery of the Group’s major trading countries
and the slow release of the domestic apparel demands, the
apparel industry in China will still face tough challenges. However,
the apparel industry in the PRC is undergoing a period of upgrade
and transformation and developing branding concept, which will be

beneficial to increasing demands for high quality zippers.

Thus, we will proactively cope with this situation by implementing

the following measures:

We will increase investment in brand construction and market
development, improve product quality and develop new products
to satisfy the needs of the market and continue to quickly respond
to customers’ demand, in order to further increase our market
share. We will also place greater efforts in the market promotion of
flat knit ribs products, as to satisfy the need for one-stop garment
accessory purchase by the customers. Furthermore, we will also
strive to product diversification, so as to support the long term

development of the Group.

Other than the above, we will continuingly improve production
and operation efficiency, facilities and techniques, as well as
automation of production, as to provide better product quality,
lower production costs and higher customers’ satisfaction, and
further improve the Group’s position in high quality zippers market.

BMFERERRNESNBRNEEAR
xR BEBNFENMREZREETBE
EVERE - WIRFFIRE MY EUR -

RE

R2015%F - XEREMEMKETYE  £%

BEXrEEFREHEE I RBEARKFERER
E1E - PEREITERDASERERKRKE - R

i hERBETEFCFEAARRERD

WA B - S AR S B s
TR -

Rt HAAFEERBUA T ERES

BASEEREREER R TSRS - B
EnBELHRABMER MEMSHL L#E
BREERHTPFR - HME—HFBMALE
BHI50E - JWAITEET S LA HEER
BWRERKER  meEP — A REEHM R
BER -1 BABEEEERZ KL
A FARERMER -

BRSNS B U A E RSB E R
EREMA R 8B EE - IRHE I E
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— SR EEEEENETISHMAL -
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The China zipper industry will experience a period of consolidation.
While those enterprises with less competitiveness will be
eliminated by market forces, enterprises with stronger core
competencies, higher qualities, larger economic scale and
higher brand recognition would grow, leading to a higher market
concentration. This will raise the barrier of entry for the industry.
Therefore, the Group may consider to pursue suitable merger and
acquisition opportunities.

APPRECIATION

We will continue to adhere to our philosophy of “Just for you”,
which includes our staff, shareholders, customers, partners and
the society. | would like to take this opportunity to express my
thanks and gratitude to our Group’s management and staff who
dedicated their endless efforts and devoted services, and to our
Shareholders, suppliers, customers and other professional parties
for their continuous support.

Xu Xipeng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015

TEUBITEREEREH - BiF IREN
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE R DN

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing finished zippers
in China. The Group’s customers for zippers are primarily OEMs
who manufacture apparel products for (i) apparel brands in China;
and (ii) some well known international apparel labels. The Group
maintains a close working relationship with apparel brand owners
on the design of zippers to be applied on the apparel products.
The apparel brand owners usually decide on the zipper supplier for
their OEMs and place orders with such OEMs who in turn source
zippers from the Group.

In addition, the Group also supplies flat knit ribs to customers to
gradually satisfy the one-stop procurement demand for apparel
components and accessories.

The Group also supplies sliders, components of zippers (including
continuous zipper chains and stops) and moulds and designs and
supplies premium items exclusively to apparel brand owners to

meet the promotional needs for their products.

BmE

AEBEIEEPHELERENE - AEBEMW
NEEPIZRA/(NTERERE UK
(i) BB B BR 0 2 Bl 5% m W2 AR E AR SR EE Y
OEM ° A" [8 SR 5 M 2 FE AR At IE A A AR
KEMNNE EESED THERE - REM
R E A E OEMIE 24 S (H B s I M 5%
FZOEMELAIER - BRZFOEMAAE
B RN 2 -

SHh - KRB BRESRUERERES
DR 0 2 AR 5 B — 3 SR
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AEBE T RAE g (BIEHRT
R RIRAREFI R RE M B KR
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During the year 2014, approximately 86.2% of the turnover was 2014 F BRfE - RE B 1086.2% 1) & X 5
derived from sales in Mainland China. Other regions to which the TRERERENHE - AEEERPTH
Group sold its products include Hong Kong, Switzerland, Italy, i BFEES - mt - BAA - EEH -

USA, India, Belgium, Germany, South Africa and Cambodia. & R - BE - mIERRIFES -
TURNOVER EHER

The Group’s turnover for the year 2014 amounted to HK$165.36 REE 2014 F 1) & 57 165,360,000 7
million, representing an increase of 2.8% as compared to the year JC B2013F 3 MN2.8% + TE R ARNEH

2013, mainly due to the increased sales in flat knit ribs. EAGHEIERTE -
Turnover analysis by product category: REMENEDMEEXENIT

Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A3MBLEEE

2014 2013
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BEET BEBT
Finished zippers and sliders REE R g AN B8 145.92 88.2 150.02 93.2
Flat knit ribs TR 13.16 8.0 6.39 4.0
Premium items and Others emMEA 6.28 3.8 443 2.8
Total turnover e 165.36 100.0 160.84 100.0
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BEENWE DN
Turnover analysis by geographic location: B EE DR E RN ¢

Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A3MBLEE

2014 2013
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BHEBT BEBTT
Mainland China SlETpN 173 142.53 86.2 126.61 78.7
Overseas N 22.83 13.8 34.23 21.3
Total turnover FEb 165.36 100.0 160.84 100.0
Finished zippers and sliders {oRFE R $EFNHL 58

Revenue from sales of finished zippers and sliders decreased by B 65 15 e Tz 9% R0 A7 58 UK 55 7 2014 Rk A 4Y
approximately HK$4,100,000 or 2.7% to HK$145.92 million for the 4,100,000 7% 7T 5k 3 4> 2.7% % 145,920,000
year 2014 (2013: HK$150.02 million) primarily due to a decrease 75T (2013 4F : 150,020,0007%87T) * £E M

in sales volume. Such decrease was a result of: (i) the continuous REEERMDPIE - LR THBERATE
slow-down of China’s economy; and (ii) slow recovery of the global HHFE : () PBEEBIRRFEE TS - R (ii)
economy. BB RREIE

Flat Knit Ribs EREN

Flat knit ribs increased by approximately 105.9% to HK$13.16 T 1% 78 A 8H B 2014 4 2 AN 49 105.9% =

million for the year 2014 (2013: HK$6.39 million) due to more 13,160,000/ 7T (20134 : 6,390,000/ 7T)

marketing promotion of flat knit ribs. T B A N K 1 1 4 78 A 72 Gn RO Th 35 TEE BT
B o
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Premium Items and Others

Premium Items and Others represent items such as premium items,
scrap materials, zipper components and moulds. Sales of premium
and other items increased by approximately 41.8% to HK$6.28
million for the year 2014 (2013: HK$4.43 million), mainly due to sale

of mould products increased.

COST OF SALES AND GROSS PROFIT

In 2014, the overall cost of sales for the Group amounted to
approximately HK$115.51 million (2013: HK$111.93 million),
representing an increase of approximately 3.2%. The overall gross
profit of the Group increased by approximately 1.9% from HK$48.91
million in 2013 to HK$49.85 million in 2014. The overall gross profit
margin in 2014 was 30.1% (2013: 30.4%), which was substantially

the same as the overall gross profit margin in 2013.

Gross profit analysis by product category:

R EM

ok EMAER e IER S - R RSBt
REA - 185 REAEREER2014 F
# A0 #4741.8% % 6,280,000 7% 7T (2013 4 :
4,430,000 7C) - REANIERE REEEIN
BB

HERERER

R2014F - R EBEBHEE K AL
115,510,000 7. (2013 4F : 111,930,000
HBIT)  TRIBAK3.2% - AEBEREEFNH
2013 4F #948,910,0007% JT 38 A1 491.9% =
2014 4 #949,850,000 5 T > 2014 F & 82
F & 530.1% (20134 : 30.4%) & £ 7 £
2013 FHIEBEMEKFHFT -

REMBRE D WENDHN -

Year ended 31 December

BE12A3MBLEE

2014 2013
HK$ million % HK$ million %

BEEBT BEAT
Finished zippers and sliders (EsZas RIEvE] 48.66 97.7 48.46 99.1
Flat knit ribs TR ZE AT (0.34) 0.7 (0.72) -1.5
Premium items and Others & mn E A 1.53 3.0 1.17 2.4
Total gross profit HEF| 49.85 100.0 48.91 100.0
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BEERWR DT
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32.3% to 33.3%, which was at
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Gross profit for flat knit ribs i
HK$-0.72 million in 2013 h,.
margin increased from apy

attributable to increased =| -:

Gross profit for premium
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products sold. ht *



DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution costs mainly represent (i) staff costs relating to sales
and marketing personnel; (ii) transportation costs for delivery
of the Group’s products to customers; and (iii) advertising and
promotion expenses. In 2014, the Group’s distribution costs
amounted to approximately HK$15.94 million (2013: HK$16.92
million), accounting for approximately 9.6% of the Group’s turnover
(2013: 10.5%). The decrease in distribution costs was mainly due
to purchase of office premise which is located in Hong Kong, which
resulted in the decrease in rental income, and the control of office

expenses.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) salary and welfare
expenses for management and administrative personnel; (ii)
depreciation and amortisation; (iii) auditors’ remuneration; (iv)
product research and development expenses; and (v) other
administrative expenses including professional fees. In 2014,
the Group’s administrative expenses amounted to approximately
HK$29.69 million (2013: HK$28.54 million), which accounted for
approximately 18.0% of the Group’s turnover (2013: 17.7%), mainly
due to further implementation of SAP project, which led to the
increase in professional expenses.

INCOME TAX

Income tax mainly represents the tax expenses incurred in relation
to the operations of the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong.

7 $H A

DERAEEIR()BBRHEERTSHEREAS
WMEIHAAE : (i) ABFRXNAEEERMNE
IR AR (ii1) EEREHER - 72014
F o RNEE D HK AL 515,940,000 7T
(20134F : 16,920,000/87C) @ HAREFE LS
58479.6% (20134 : 10.5%) ° 7 $ Ak AN B
LEEZRREEUREBONAYEEME
B AEAE R ARSI A B AT -

ITHBAX

THRASXTERE(I)EEMTHRAENG
ERBFEBR ()ITEREH ()R8
e (iv)ERFEBA: k(v)HMm1T
HRX(BEZEEXEBR) - N2014F - K
& @77 BB X 49 4 29,690,0007% T (2013
% : 28,540,000 7T) - IEAREEEEEL
18.0% (20134 : 17.7%) * T 22 MM SAP
BEME—SERSEMBERIEERALM
FTBL -

FR®

FISHEIRERAKRERTERBEZEE
ELEMHERTRERX -
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BEERWR DT

PROFITABILITY

In 2014, the Group’s profit attributable to equity Shareholders
amounted to HK$3.66 million (2013: HK$3.06 million), representing
an increase of 19.6% as compared to 2013. The increase was
primarily due to stricter production and cost management, and
optimised production technique and procedure. The margin of profit
attributable to equity Shareholders for the year was 2.2% (2013:
1.9%), an increase of 0.3 percentage points compared to 2013.

During the year, the Group’s return on equity was 1.2% (2013:
1.0%), representing an increase of 0.2 percentage points as
compared to 2013.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are one of the principal components of the
Group’s current assets. The value of inventories accounted for
approximately 11.2% and 13.1% of the Group’s total current assets
as at 31 December 2013 and 2014 respectively.

Inventories increased by approximately 7.4% from HK$17.1 million
as at 31 December 2013 to HK$18.37 million as at 31 December
2014, mainly due to the stock materials increased, which fulfilled the
delivery needs of subsequent orders.

The average inventory turnover days for 2014 and 2013 are 63
days.
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The write-down on inventories for the year 2014 was HK$115,000
(2013: HK$-351,000) due to a decrease in the net realisable value

of certain finished goods with reference to the latest selling price.

TRADE DEBTORS

The Group’s policy in respect of allowance for doubtful debts for
2014 was the same as that in 2013. As at 31 December 2014, the
allowance for doubtful debts was HK$160,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$136,000), accounting for 0.4% of the Group’s total trade debtors
(2013: 0.4%).

The Group’s trade debtors (net) increased by around 1.9% from
approximately HK$36.76 million as at 31 December 2013 to
HK$37.46 million as at 31 December 2014.

The average trade debtors turnover days for 2014 and 2013 are 82
days.

TRADE CREDITORS

The Group’s trade creditors primarily relate to purchases of raw
materials from suppliers, with credit terms of 7 to 60 days from trade
creditors.

The Group’s trade creditors increased around 5.1% from
approximately HK$6.88 million as at 31 December 2013 to HK$7.23
million as at 31 December 2014. The average trade creditors
turnover days decreased from 69 days in 2013 to 65 days in 2014.
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Other payables mainly represent (i) payroll and staff benefits
payable; (ii) accrued expenses; (iii) deposit received; (iv) payables
for fixed assets; and (v) advance from a third party. The balance of
other payables decreased by approximately 19.2% to HK$38.06
million as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$47.12 million) mainly
due to the settlement of construction payment for garment
accessories industrial park located at Jingmen, Hubei, PRC.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES RBEETREREIR

TRAEHZE2014F K% 2013F12 A31HIEM
EFEEHNRESTEERHEE ¢

The following table is a summary of cash flow data for the two years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MBHLEEE

2014 2013
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAET
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBAGIRE TR 15.83 34.79
Net cash used in investing activities WEREFTAR 25 (67.64) (39.19)
Net cash generated from financing activities B EEBFTIS IS 5 8.29 4.23
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents Re RReEEBYR L FHE (43.52) (0.17)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January K1 A1BERRE R
ReHEY 81.67 79.38
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNERE R F Eh ) B (0.17) 2.46
Cash and cash equivalents ®12 A31 BRRE
at 31 December KB E&EED 37.98 81.67




The Group’s net cash inflow from operating activities for the year
2014 amounted to HK$15.83 million (2013: HK$34.79 million). As
at 31 December 2014, cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$37.98 million, representing a net decrease of HK$43.69 million
as compared with the position as at 31 December 2013, mainly due
to the effect of the increase in settlement of construction payment for
garment accessories industrial park located at Jingmen, Hubei, and
the increase in bank deposits with maturity period over 3 months.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had short-term bank loans of
HK$17 million, mainly for the purchase of office premise located at
Unit B on 16th Floor, Nos. 1, 1A & 1B Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had
no bank loans.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had unutilised bank facilities
amounting to approximately HK$32.96 million. The debt to asset
ratio, being the Group’s total liabilities over its total assets, at 31
December 2014 was 15.9% (2013: 13.9%). The debt to asset
ratio is considered to be healthy and suitable for the continuous

development of the Group’s business.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net current assets
of approximately HK$77.89 million. The key components of
current assets as at 31 December 2014 included inventories of
approximately HK$18.37 million, trade and other receivables
of approximately HK$41.54 million, deposits with banks of
approximately HK$41.16 million and cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$37.98 million. The key components of current
liabilities included trade and other payables of approximately
HK$45.29 million and short term bank loans of HK$17 million.
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The net current assets decreased from HK$99.15 million as at
31 December 2013 to HK$77.89 million as at 31 December 2014
primarily due to the increase in settlement of construction payment

for garment accessories industrial park of KEE Jingmen.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, certain lease prepayments and buildings
with book value of HK$30.56 million (31 December 2013: HK$32.41
million) of the Group were pledged to secure unutilized bank loans
limit granted by a commercial bank in an amount of RMB26 million
(equivalent to HK$32.96 million) (as at 31 December 2013: RMB26
million (equivalent to HK$33.07 million)) to the Group.

NON ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(i) On 3 March 2014, KEE Guangdong received a notice of
responses to action from the Intermediate People’s Court (the
“Foshan Intermediate Court”) of Foshan City, Guangdong
Province of the PRC. Pursuant to the writ of civil proceedings
filed by the claimant, the claimant, a finished zipper producer,
alleges that a teeth chain design used in a finished zipper
series produced by KEE Guangdong has infringed an exterior
design patent owned by the claimant. Afterwards, Foshan
Intermediate Court made an unfavourable civil judgement
to KEE Guangdong. Since the design patent owned by the
claimant was declared completely invalid by the Patent
Reexamination Board of the State Intellectual Property
Office of the PRC (“State Intellectual Property Office”) on
the application by KEE Guangdong, the Higher People’s
Court of Guangdong Province of the PRC reversed the civil

B & E ¥ % H2013F 128318 0
99,150,000 7T/ £ 2014512 A 31 BHHY
77,890,000 7T + £ Z H B 57 P AR L 5
B IR TRRAE S L INFTE

EERM
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7T (4857 32,960,000 75 ) (742013412
A318 : A R #26,000,0007t % R
33,070,000 %8 7T) KRB ARITEREE ©
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(ii)

judgement of the Foshan Intermediate Court and dismissed
the claims by the claimant. The details are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 13 March 2014 and 27
January 2015, respectively. In March 2015, KEE Guangdong
received “Notice on attending litigation of patent administrative
cases from Beijing Intellectual Property Court”. The claimant
sued (“Defendant”), and KEE Guangdong should attend the
litigation as the third person. The claimant requested the Court
to reverse the invalidation made by the Defendant. On the
date of approval of financial statements, the case has not been
trailed.

It was unanimously resolved by all of the Directors (including
all the independent non-executive Directors) on 3 March
2015 that in order to improve the capital usage efficiency and
generate investment return from the Group’s idle funds, the
Group might engage in risk related investments including
investments in securities, real estate and trust products
and other acts of risk-related investment which may be
recognised by the Stock Exchange. Investment in securities
includes investment in domestic and overseas stocks,
securities investment funds and other negotiable securities
and their derivatives as well as wealth management products
with stocks, interest rate or exchange rate as investment
subjects and their derivatives bought from banks and other
financial institutions. In order to standardise the risk-related
investment management, raise the operational efficiency
of funds, strengthen risk control, prevent investment risks,
the Company has adopted its formulated policy on 3 March
2015 to regulate the risk-related investment of the Group.
KEE (Guangdong) entered into the structured deposit
agreement with Industrial Bank Co., Limited on 4 March
2015 for the subscription of the structured deposit at an
amount of RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,000,000) which was financed by the idle funds of the
Group. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 4 March 2015.

(i)
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The capital commitments as at 31 December 2013 and 2014 not
provided for in the financial statements were HK$49.35 million and

HK$17.73 million respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Individual companies within the Group has limited exchange rate
risk as most of the transactions are denominated in the same
currency as the functional currency of the operations in which they
relate. The Group did not hedge its exposure to risks arising from
fluctuations in exchange rates during the year ended 31 December
2014.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 560 full-time employees
(31 December 2013: 594 full-time employees). The Group reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees annually according
to the relevant market practice and individual performance of
the employees. Save for the social insurance in China and the
mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong, the Group has not
set aside or accrued any amount of money to provide for retirement
or similar benefits for its employees. The staff costs incurred in the
year 2014 were approximately HK$58.39 million (2013: HK$58.59
million).
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THE INDUSTRIAL PARK IN JINGMEN

On 30 November 2012, KEE Jingmen entered into a main contractor
contract with 1 #B7E R E AR A 7] (ZhongHui Construction Group
Co., Ltd) for the construction of the garment accessories industrial
park, details of which are set out in the circular of the Company
dated 4 January 2013.

As at 31 December 2014, the construction of garment accessories
industrial park was almost completed. The qualified written
documents of fire safety on acceptance was received on
24 November 2014. The overall completion acceptance procedure

is under way.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has committed to achieving high corporate governance

standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard
the interests of Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and

accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
has complied with all the code provisions set out in the CG Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of
three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three

independent non-executive Directors.

The biographical information of the Directors and the relationships
between the members of the Board are set out in the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 44 to 51 of the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the presence of executive

Directors during the year.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings and
general meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31
December 2014 is set out below:

Annual

Board General

The Board Meetings Meeting
Attendance  Attendance

Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Xipeng (Chairman) 6/6 11
Mr. Xu Xinan 6/6 1M
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert 5/6 11
Non-executive Director
Mr. Yang Shaolin 6/6 11
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lin Bin 6/6 1M
Mr. Kong Hing Ki 6/6 1M
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy 5/6 1M

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held
by Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for chairing the meetings,
managing the operations of the Board, and ensuring that all major
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for running the Company’s businesses and implementing the
Group’s strategic plans and business goals. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all

independent non-executive Directors are independent.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
DIRECTORS’ RE-ELECTION

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and
that every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three

years.

Each of the Directors is appointed for a specific term of three years
and is subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions

objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Company as well as the services and advice from the company
secretary and senior management. The Directors may, upon
request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their

duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his responsibilities to the
Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be
arranged and reading materials on relevant topics will be issued to
Directors where appropriate.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company on

continuous professional development during the year.

Reading Attending
Name of Directors Materials Seminars

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Xipeng (Chairman) v X
Mr. Xu Xinan v X
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert v X
Non-executive Director

Mr. Yang Shaolin X v
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Bin X v/
Mr. Kong Hing Ki v v
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy 4 X

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of
the Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
Shareholders upon request.
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The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate
Information” on page 2.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system and relationship
with external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees
of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.

The Audit Committee held three meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2014 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also had three meetings with the external
auditors without the presence of the executive Directors.

The attendance record of each Director at the Audit Committee
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out

below:

Audit Committee Attendance
Mr. Lin Bin (Chairman) 3/3

Mr. Kong Hing Ki 3/3

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy 3/3
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management; reviewing and making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management; establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy to
ensure that no Director or any of his associates will participate in
deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met three times to review and
make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure of the Company, and to determine the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management and
other related matters.

The attendance record of each Director at the Remuneration
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December
2014 is set out below:

Remuneration Committee Attendance
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Xu Xipeng 3/3
Mr. Lin Bin 3/3

The remuneration of senior executives by band for the year ended
31 December 2014 is set out below:

Number of Persons

HKD300,000 to HKD500,000 2
HKD500,000 to HKD700,000 3
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning of Directors,
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination
procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of
the Company by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process
when necessary.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives
for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
character, qualifications, experience, independence and other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy
and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election at the

annual general meeting.

The attendance record of each Director at the Nomination
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December

2014 is set out below:

Nomination Committee Attendance
Mr. Kong Hing Ki (Chairman) 1M
Mr. Xu Xinan 11
Mr. Lin Bin 11

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate

Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILTY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 75 to 77.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out under note 4(c) to the
Notes to the Financial Statements on page 114.
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The details of other services are set out as follows: HEMRBEHOFEBOT
2014 2013
2014 5 20134
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— review services —EHR®E 354 344
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company,
including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s

accounting and financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Li Yan Wing, Rita of Tricor Services Limited, external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as its joint company
secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Xu
Haizhou, joint company secretary and chief financial officer of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at Shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
Directors. All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange after each Shareholder meeting.
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s articles of association,
any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
GENERAL MEETINGS

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the articles of association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures
set out in the preceding paragraph.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong

Kong:

Address: Unit B, 16/F, YHC Tower, Nos.1, 1A and 1B Sheung
Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2369 1388

Email: Andy.xu@kee.cn/wj.he@kee.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address, apart from
the registered office of the Company, and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 2369 2288 or (852)
2369 2118 for assistance.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meetings and other general meetings. The Chairman of
the Board, all other members of the Board including non-executive
Director, independent non-executive Directors, and the chairmen
of all Board committees (or their delegates) will make themselves
available at the annual general meetings of the Company to meet
Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association. An up to date version of
the Company’s articles of association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
website.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of seven
Directors, including three executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Xipeng (5F#38), aged 49, is an executive Director,
chairman of the Board, one of the founders of the Group and
an elder brother of Mr. Xu Xinan. Mr. Xu is responsible for the
formulation of development strategies, overseeing of the overall
business of the Group and the operation of the Board. Mr. Xu
has over 22 years of experience in the zipper industry, especially
on the overall management and production supervision. He was

appointed as an executive Director on 6 July 2010.

Mr. Xu Xinan (FF8%58), aged 44, is an executive Director, the
chief executive officer, one of the founders of the Group and
the younger brother of Mr. Xu Xipeng. Mr. Xu is responsible for
the implementation of the decisions of the Board and the overall
guidance and supervision of our business. Mr. Xu has over 22
years of experience in the zipper industry, especially on the overall
management, and sales and marketing. He was appointed as an
executive Director on 6 July 2010.
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Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert (E&3), aged 63, is an executive
Director. Mr. Chow was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 6 July 2010 and re-designated as an executive Director on 1
April 2012. Mr. Chow joined the Group in 2005 and has advised
the Group on business strategy and business development. Mr.
Chow has over 23 years’ experience in corporate management
and holds a Bachelor Degree of Commerce from McMaster
University in Canada. Mr. Chow is also a member of The Society
of Management Accountants of Canada (also known as CMA
Canada). On 17 June 2013, Mr. Chow was appointed as a director
of Inetol Enterprises Limited. Mr. Chow’s work experience prior to
joining the Company includes:

. from 1988 to 1991, as the regional finance director of Frank
Small & Associates Limited, an Australian market research
company;

. from 1992 to 1996, as chief operating officer and director and
one of the founders of Asia Market Intelligence Limited, a
market research company in Hong Kong; and

. from 1999 until the date of this annual report, as the
managing director, the founder and the sole shareholder
of Inetol Cyber Limited (HEEi4E R 2 5]) of Hong Kong,
a company engaged in manufacturing and trading of
headwear.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yang Shaolin (#4*#f), aged 41, is a non-executive Director.
Mr. Yang was appointed as an executive Director on 6 July 2010
and was the chief financial officer and one of the joint company
secretaries. Mr. Yang was re-designated as a non-executive
Director and resigned as the chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of the Company on 1 April 2012. Mr. Yang
joined the Group in December 2008 and has over 17 years’
experience in corporate management and financial management.
Mr. Yang worked as an accountant and later as a finance manager
in various manufacturing enterprises (including EM&RITSBE
fR /2 7] (Guangzhou KYH Metal Co., Ltd.) for over two and a half
years) prior to joining the Group. He obtained a Bachelor's Degree
in Economics majoring in accounting from 1t Z4#1& £k (Beijing
Wuzi University) in 1997, then obtained a MBA Master's Degree
from #1L K2 (Sun Yat-Sen University) in 2012. Mr. Yang is also
a member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a registered tax agent in the PRC. Mr. Yang was appointed
on 22 October 2012 as a chief financial officer of E& X %EE
f&15BBR AR (Guangdong Haid Group Co., Ltd.) (stock code:
002311), a company whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen

Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Bin (#3£), aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 August 2010. Mr. Lin graduated from
STPETAE A E (Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics) in
1984 with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics majoring in industrial
accounting. Mr. Lin obtained his Doctorate Degree in Economics
(Accountancy) from [EF9KE (the University of Xiamen) in 1997.
Mr. Lin has served in various positions as tutor, lecturer and
associate professor in the Faculty of Economics and Management
in ZEHRIHEAE (East China Jiaotong University). He is also a
fellow of CPA Australia. Currently, Mr. Lin is a professor of the
department of accountancy in 7 [LIJX2 (Sun Yat-Sen University).
His roles in public services include:

+  the vice chairman of & ANEEFTHE (the Association of
Internal Audit of Guangdong Province);

EBIEHIERER

& (the Professional Committee of Internal Control of the

. a committee member of FH &2

Accounting Society of China); and

+  a member of FEAREMB BRI SEANITIEFIEEEZE
©XHHE R4 (the Consultation Team for Enterprise Internal
Control Standards of the Ministry of Finance of the PRC).

Mr. Lin resigned as the vice chairman of BEREEE2E (the
Audit Society of Guangdong Province) since December 2014 and
resigned as a committee member of PR S B S @A FE
Z E® (the Committee of Accounting Education of the Accounting

Society of China) since October 2014.
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Mr. Lin also acts as an independent (non-executive) director of:

. BMBEEE®ERHBRAA (Guangzhou Baiyun
International Airport Company Limited), a company whose
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange;

. BB AR B R A7 (Guangzhou Zhujiang Brewery
Co., Ltd.), a company whose shares are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange; and

. HAEBEIAD AR AT (China Fangda Group Co., Ltd.), a
company whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, appointed on 1 April 2014.

Mr. Kong Hing Ki ((T##), aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 24 November 2010. He is
also the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee. He has over 17 years’ experience in
accounting, auditing and finance, gained from international
accountancy and commercial firms. Currently, he is a financial
controller of a company whose ultimate holding company is listed
on the main board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, and is an independent non-executive director and the
audit committee chairman of Hing Lee (HK) Holdings Limited
(stock code: 396), a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board, and also an independent non-executive director and
the remuneration committee chairman of RENHENG Enterprise
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3628), a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board.

Mr. Kong obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce from
The Australian National University and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from Deakin University. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of CPA Australia.
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Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (BfE4), aged 51, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 10 August 2010.
He is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee. Mr. Tam graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional Diploma
in Accountancy in 1986 and is a fellow of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 28 years’ experience
in accounting, auditing and finance. He is currently the president
of Essentack Limited, a corporate strategy and management
advisory company. He is also an independent non-executive
director, the remuneration committee chairman and the audit
committee chairman of Opes Asia Development Limited (stock

code: 810), a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board.

Mr. Tam resigned as an independent non-executive director,
the audit committee chairman and a member of remuneration
committee and nomination committee of Kith Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1201) and an independent non-executive director
and the nomination committee chairman of RENHENG Enterprise
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3628), companies whose shares are
both listed on the Main Board, with effect from 1 July 2014 and 31
October 2014 respectively. He had also once been an independent
non-executive director and the audit committee chairman of Long
Success International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8017), a
company whose shares are listed on the Main Board, up to 18
October 2013.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

ESENGREEEBE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management are responsible for the day-to-day

management of the Group’s business.

Ms. Mo Qiuye (EFf\Z), aged 36, was appointed as vice sales
director in December 2014. She is responsible for the Group’s
main business in China. Ms. Mo joined the Group in March 1999
as a sales assistant. Ms. Mo has more than 15 years’ experience
in the sale of zippers and garment accessories and has an in-depth
knowledge in the apparel business.

Mr. Liu Binghua (2I1%%£), aged 33, is the vice director of research
technology and product manufacturing of the Group, responsible
for technology development, equipment development, production
management and quality management, etc. Mr. Liu joined
the Group in January 2007 and has been the manager of the
department of equipment development, factory director of zipper
factory, assistant director of research technology and product
manufacturing, etc. Mr. Liu has more than 8 years’ experience in
the production of zipper and product development and has an in-

depth knowledge in production management.

Mr. He Weijian (fi]f£f£), aged 32, is the assistant of the Chief
Executive Officer. He joined the Group in April 2012 as finance
manager of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. He was
assistant manager of KPMG. Mr. He has a bachelor’s degree in
economics from Guangdong University of Foreign Studies (&% 9
BHNEKE) of the PRC.
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Mr. Roberto Peano, aged 59, is the Chief Product Officer of the
Group, responsible for development of new products. He has
many years of experience in the zipper industry and a wide and
deep knowledge of the complete product development process.
Prior to joining the Group in March 2012, Mr. Peano took different
positions in RIRI SA, such as Production Manager of high tech
department and R&D Manager. Mr. Peano graduated from the
State Technical Institute of Varese with a Bachelor Degree in
Mechanics.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Xu Haizhou (#&#), aged 39, is currently chief financial
officer of the Group. He was appointed as the joint company
secretary on 29 June 2012. He joined the Group in May 2010
and has taken different positions such as group finance manager
and vice financial controller of the Group. Mr. Xu has a bachelor’s
degree in economics from Hubei University (1L A& of the
PRC. He is a member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public

Accountants and a certified tax agent in the PRC.

Ms. Li Yan Wing, Rita (Z=87%8), aged 49, was appointed as a joint
company secretary of the Company on 25 November 2010. Ms.
Li is a director of the corporate services division of Tricor Services
Limited and a fellow of both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. She has over 25 years’ experience in corporate
advisory services. Prior to joining Tricor Services Limited, Ms.
Li served as a senior manager of the company secretarial
department of Tengis Limited. Ms. Li has provided various
secretarial and corporate services to many listed companies.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHREE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are design, manufacture and sale of
finished zippers, flat knit ribs and other garment accessories in
China. The Group’s major customers are OEMs who manufacture
apparel products for (i) apparel brands in China; and (ii) some well
known international apparel labels.

The Group also supplies sliders, components of zippers (including
continuous zipper chains and stops) and moulds and designs and
supplies premium items (such as glasses) exclusively to apparel
brand owners to meet the promotional needs for their products.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss” on page 7

of this annual report.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2
cents per Share (2013: HK2 cents) in respect of the year 2014 to
the Shareholders.

Upon approval at the annual general meeting on Friday, 22 May
2015, the proposed final dividend will be paid on or about Monday,
15 June 2015 to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Monday, 1 June 2015.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$152.75 million (2013: HK$143.66 million). Details
of movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in consolidated statement of changes in equity to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales and purchases of the Group attributable to its major customers

and suppliers respectively for the two financial years were as follows:

FERKRE

KREBREZ2014F12 F31 HILFERE
BEHNARFRFETEN [GREBREER] -

EFEHEMKRRIRMN2014F & K2
(2013 : 278l) WRHRLE. -

FR2015F 5 A22 H( 2B R ) BTHREE
FREEIER - EHRRAKRIAER 2015F
6 158 (BE —) A&k TR 20154
6 A1B(2H—)RIARQFIRREM 2R -

(EA]

R2014F 128318 - ARFADIKFER
152,750,000 7% 7T (2013 4F : 143,660,000 %
TL) c ARBEFANHENEBDFREANES
MBHRRNGEESELBRA

FEEFRHEER

AEBERMETBREFEADIRALIEER K
HEBELNHEERLRBENT ¢

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE

2014 2013

% of total % of total

turnover turnover

A EEN (WBEETEN

BA BoOk

The largest customer BARF 5.4 5.6
Five largest customers AAREF 18.2 17.4
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The information required in paragraph 31(5) of Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules is omitted pursuant to paragraph 31(7) of Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules since the percentage of total turnover
attributable to the five largest customers combined for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was approximately 18.2%, i.e. less than
30%.

B FTAR A ER16 5 31(7) B - TR AN
Mi8x16 £ 31(5) RFTMAERERA] T HBK -
BERAHZ2014F12 A3 ALEERAE
FPEHREEEELBAENLL18.2% - BN
7 30% °

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31HILLEE

2014 2013

% of total % of total

purchase purchase

{RAAEREBH (hEREY

Bkt Botk

The largest supplier ARER 13.7 14.2
Five largest suppliers hARHFER 46.6 51.1

All of the above five largest suppliers of the Group are independent
third parties. To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their associates or any Shareholder holding more than
5% of the issued share capital of the Company, has any interest in

any of the Group’s five largest suppliers as disclosed above.

BANK BORROWING

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had short bank loan
HKD17,000,000 (2013: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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ORDINARY SHARES

Details of movements in ordinary shares of the Company during
the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity
to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 5 to 10 of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Xipeng (Chairman)

Mr. Xu Xinan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert

Non-executive Director

Mr. Yang Shaolin

HER
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Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHTEE
Mr. Lin Bin MR EE
Mr. Kong Hing Ki LR 4
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy BEAKE

In accordance with articles 87(1) and (2) of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Yang Shaolin, Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy and
Mr. Kong Hing Ki will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographies of Directors and senior management of the Group are

set out on pages 44 to 51 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has any unexpired service contract which

e

RERNAREBERMAIFES7(1) & (2)1
B E « BB A BRI EBB A
FEERRBEFAE LRI TAERER
£ o

i

EENGREEERER

AEEEENEREERERES N AT R
44%51H o

EERBEYN

BERERITAARRKEMBARTAR

S
e

£

is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries within FRKEIETBAEELEE CEERBERIN B
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory RNETBRBEHL -

compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS EENEOES

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance in RARSHEEESIN  EEHENARFHE

EART BT 88 2 B] P AT S i 7 6F A% B 3 SF N AE AR
RREMNEXGNOTERXHEEEEEXN

N
Zs o
T

relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at the end of

the year or any time during the year.

56



NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company of his/her compliance with the non-competition
undertakings provided to the Company under a deed of non-
competition in favour of the Company entered into on 30
December 2010 (details are disclosed in the Prospectus under the
section headed “Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders”).
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under
the deed of non-competition have been complied with by the

Controlling Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart
from the Group’s business, which competes or competed or is or
was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business at any time during the year ended 31 December 2014
and up to and including the date of this annual report.

PENSION SCHEME

In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly
basis for its employees. The Group has no further obligation for
payment of post-retirement benefits to employees beyond the
aforesaid contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group and are
under the control of an independent trustee. Both the Group and
its employees are required to contribute 5% of the employees’
monthly salaries. The mandatory contributions required to be

e
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made respectively by the Group and an employee are each capped at
HK$1,500 per month. Members are entitled to 100% of the employers’
mandatory contributions as soon as they are paid to the MPF Scheme
but all benefits derived from the mandatory contributions must be
preserved until an employee reaches the retirement age of 65 or in

accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2014.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the Directors in the
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

contained in the Listing Rules, are as follows:
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LoNG PosiTIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE REQXTRAREERDZFR

ComPANY

Underlying
Shares Interested
(Note 1)
Number of Ordinary BERERN
Director Nature of Interest Shares Owned BRI EE Total Percentage
2 RitE BANEEREE  (WED) At EE
Mr. Xu Xipeng Corporate 310,490,000 - 310,490,000 74.81%
Hss) pika NG
Mr. Xu Xinan Corporate 310,490,000 - 310,490,000 74.81%
AHEELE AF]
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert Beneficial Owner - 380,000 380,000 0.09%
REREE EREAA
Mr. Kong Hing Ki Beneficial Owner - 380,000 380,000 0.09%
TEEELE EREAA
Mr. Lin Bin Beneficial Owner - 380,000 380,000 0.09%
MBS 4 ERHEAA
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy Beneficial Owner - 380,000 380,000 0.09%
BRELE EREAA
Note: FfzE -
1. The number of underlying shares represents the shares in which the Directors 1. HEROESEEEERFAEREMER A%
are deemed to be interested as a result of holding share options. BRERRIEG ©
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LonG PosiTioNs IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ASSOCIATED

REBEEzZRORERRD 2FR

CORPORATION

Director Name of Associated Corporation Percentage
B HEBEEE8 BO
Mr. Xu Xipeng #8585t 4 Nicco 49.75%
Mr. Xu Xinan 5785 5t 4 Nicco 49.75%
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert &% ¢ 5t 4 Nicco 0.50%

As at 31 December 2014, the Directors do not hold any short
positions in Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives
or any of their associates had any interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations were recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO as at 31 December 2014.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OR
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, the register of substantial Shareholders
maintained under section 336 of the SFO shows that the Company
had been notified of the following substantial Shareholders’
interests and short positions, representing 5% or more of the
Company’s issued share capital:
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Name Number of Shares Percentage
£ g B
Nicco 310,490,000 74.81%
Mr. Xu Xipeng 7 #5155t 4 (Note ffi5F 1) 310,490,000 74.81%
Mr. Xu Xinan 57 5t 4 (Note i3t 2) 310,490,000 74.81%
Ms. Ke Saixia 17 Z & 22+ (Note ffizt 1) 310,490,000 74.81%
Ms. Lu Jiehong B 24T % 1= (Note Kt 2) 310,490,000 74.81%

Notes:

1. As Nicco is beneficially owned as to 49.75% by Mr. Xu Xipeng, Mr. Xu Xipeng
is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Nicco by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO. Ms. Ke Saixia, being Mr. Xu Xipeng’s spouse, is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Nicco under Part XV of the SFO.

2. As Nicco is beneficially owned as to 49.75% by Mr. Xu Xinan, Mr. Xu Xinan
is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Nicco by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO. Ms. Lu Jiehong, being Mr. Xu Xinan’s spouse, is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Nicco under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered an interest of a
short position in the Shares and underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company that was required to be recorded under Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Both Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan are executive Directors
and Controlling Shareholders and therefore are connected
persons of the Company. Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan (as
lessors) and KEE Guangdong, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (as lessee), entered into a renewal agreement (the
“Renewal Agreement”) on 7 December 2011 pursuant to which
Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan have agreed to lease to KEE
Guangdong the production base in Foshan City of Guangdong
Province at a monthly rental of RMB300,000 payable within the
first 10 working days of each month for an initial term of three

e
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years commencing on 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015. An
independent property valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, advised
that the monthly rental of RMB300,000 is fair and reasonable with
reference to the market rate. For each of the three years ending 31
December 2015, the annual rental paid and payable by the Group
(the “Annual Cap”) under the Lease Agreement was as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2013 #,Z=2013F 12 A31 Bt F/E
Year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=2014F 12 A31 HILFE
Year ending 31 December 2015 = 2015412 A31 HIEFE

Given the annual rental amount payable by KEE Guangdong, the
transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreement, which
constitute continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.34,
fall within the ambit of Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules and is
only subject to the reporting and announcement requirements set
out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules, the annual
review requirements set out in Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 of the
Listing Rules and the requirements set out in Rules 14A.35(1) and
14A.35(2) of the Listing Rules. A waiver from the announcement
requirements set out in Rule 14A.47 of the Listing Rules was
granted by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange since the details of the
Lease Agreement have been disclosed in the Prospectus under
the section headed “Connected Transaction”.

The Company has complied with the relevant requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, including the Annual
Cap, and will re-comply with the relevant rules of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules (including independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements) if the waiver from the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
expires or the Annual Cap is exceeded, or when the Lease
Renewal Agreement expires or is renewed or when there is a
material change to the terms of the Lease Renewal Agreement.
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Shanghai Lingfeng Trading Company Limited (“Lingfeng Trading”)
holds 20% of the interest in KEE Jingmen. Under the Listing
Rules, Lingfeng Trading is a connected person of the Company.
The entering into of the Master Agreement therefore constitutes
a continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On 18 July 2014 (after trading
hours), KEE Guangdong entered into the Master Agreement with
Lingfeng Trading, pursuant to which Lingfeng Trading and its
subsidiaries will (i) provide the processing services in connection
with flat knit ribs to KEE Guangdong; (ii) sell flat knit ribs to
KEE Guangdong; and/or (iii) supply equipment or spare parts
to KEE Guangdong on an ongoing or continuing basis for three
years ending 31 December 2016. Master Agreement has been
entered into on normal commercial terms, and the terms thereof
are fair and reasonable and are in the interest of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole. The total amount payable by
KEE Guangdong to Lingfeng Trading and its subsidiaries for
the transactions contemplated under the Master Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2014, 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2016 shall not exceed RMB5,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$6,250,000).
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ANNUAL REVIEW

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i)  on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with the Lease Agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

KPMG, the auditor of the Company, was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in
this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange. The auditors’ letter confirms that, in respect of

the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions:

a. nothing has come to auditors’ attention that cause the
auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s
board of directors.
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b.  nothing has come to auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such

transactions.

c.  with respect to the aggregate amount of the above continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to auditors’
attention that causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the
maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in the previous
announcements dated 7 December 2012 and 18 July 2014
respectively made by the Company in respect of each of the

disclosed continuing connected transactions.

OTHER RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the aforesaid continuing connected transactions, the
related-party transactions set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements also include transactions which did not
constitute continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Details of other related-party transactions
entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2014, which did not constitute connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are set out in notes 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the written resolutions of
the sole Shareholder of the Company passed on 14 December
2010, pursuant to which the Board may, at its absolute discretion
and on such terms as it may think fit, grants options to any
employee(s) (whether full time or part time including any Director)
of any member of the Group at the exercise price for such number
of Shares as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to enable the Board to grant options to selected employee(s) as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution

to the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 40,000,000 Shares which represents
approximately 9.6% of the Shares in issue on the date of this
report. The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted and to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to any employee(s) (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the
date of grant. Save as determined by the Board and provided in
the offer of the grant of the relevant options, there is no minimum
holding period before an option is exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-
one days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable to our Company on acceptance of the offer for the
grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price is to be determined by the Board provided always
that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the grant of the option, which
must be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the exercise price shall in no event be

less than the nominal amount of one Share.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 11,600,000 share

options were granted by the Company.
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As at 31 December 2014, Directors and employees of the Group M20145F12A31H - AEBEEREESR

have the following interests under the Share Option Scheme. BEIRERT 81 A A T4 o
Closing Price of
the Securities
Immediately
before the Date
on Which the
Options were
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Offered
Date of Exercise  at1.1.2014 Duringthe Duringthe During at31.12.2014 SEERE
Director  Offer Price R20145 Year Year the Year M2014%  Exercise Period REERAES
BEzps  BERD TRE 1B1R&F  EREE  TROE FRAXY 12ANBER L WmE
ChowHoi 07122012 0.60 380,000 - - - 380,000  From the day after 0.58
Kwang, the 2012 annual
Albert results being
Bl announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
EN1FFEEER
EBARNTEER
2ENEER
Lin Bin 07.12.2012 0.60 380,000 - - - 380,000  From the day after 0.58
R the 2012 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
BN1FFERED
EBHENMTEERE
RENEER

68



Date of
Director Offer

Ezd RERH

Kong Hing Ki 07.12.2012
TEH

Tam Yuk 07.12.2012
Sang,

Sammy

EA

Exercise
Price

(e
060

0.60

Outstanding
at1.1.2014
R20145
1A184%

380,000

380,000

Granted
During the
Year

ERR

Exercised
During the
Year

TR

Lapsed
During
the Year
ERER

Outstanding
at 31.12.2014

R2014%
12831 BERE

380,000

380,000

Exercise Period

T8

From the day after
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
B12FFREED
ERARNTEER
#ENEER

From the day after
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
BN1FEERED
ERARNTEER
$ENEER

Closing Price of
the Securities
Immediately
before the Date
on Which the
Options were
Offered
SEBERE
REZHARS
Gl

0.58

0.58

Employeesin 27.05.2011
Aggregate
ZitER

1.39

1,704,000

276,000

1,428,000

From the day after
the 2011 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
mOMFFERED
EZREN165FE
FBEREER

1.25
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Closing Price of
the Securities
Immediately
before the Date
on Which the
Options were
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Offered
Date of Exercise ~ at1.1.2014 Duringthe Duringthe  During at31.12.2014 SEERE
Director  Offer Price R20145F Year Year the Year R2014F  Exercise Period BEEHAZES
Espg BERD RE 1R1R&F  FREE  TROE FAXE 12ANBER gid W E
27.05.2011 1.39 1,704,000 - - 276,000 1,428,000  From the day after 1.25
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results
being announced
m0125EEXA
AEBAZ0165F
FREANEER
27.05.2011 1.39 2,272,000 - - 368,000 1,904,000  From the day after 1.25
the 2013 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
HOBFEFEER
ERARN6EERE
2ENEER
27.05.2011 1.39 2,272,000 - - 368,000 1,904,000  From the day after 1.25
the 2014 annual
results being
announced fo
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
BANUFEREER
ETARN6FFE

FENEEH
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Date of
Director Offer
EEpfE  REAH

27.05.2011

07.12.2012

07.12.2012

Exercise
Price

e
139

0.60

0.60

Outstanding
at1.1.2014
R2014%
1A184%

3,408,000

2,902,500

2,902,500

Granted
During the
Year

ERRH

Exercised
During the
Year

TR

Lapsed
During
the Year
ERER

552,000

660,000

660,000

Outstanding
at31.12.2014

R2014%
12831 BERE

2,856,000

2,242,500

2,242,500

Exercise Period

T8

From the day after
the 2015 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
M15FFEEER
EBAZN6FFE
#ENEER

From the day after
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
BN1FFERED
EBARNTEER
2ENEER

From the day after
the 2013 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
EPIRESEZEES YN
EBATNTEEE
#ENLER

Closing Price of
the Securities
Immediately
before the Date
on Which the
Options were
Offered
SEBERE
REZHARS
WHE

1.25

0.58

0.58
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Closing Price of

the Securities

Immediately

before the Date

on Which the

Options were

Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Offered

Date of Exercise ~ at1.1.2014 Duringthe Duringthe  During at31.12.2014 SEERE

Director  Offer Price R20145F Year Year the Year R2014F  Exercise Period BEEHAZES
Espg BERD RE 1R1R&F  FREE  TROE FAXE 12ANBER gid W E

07.12.2012 0.60 3,870,000 - - 880,000 2,990,000  From the day after 0.58
the 2014 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
BNUFFREED
ERARNTEER
#ENEER

07.12.2012 0.60 3,870,000 - - 880,000 2,990,000  From the day after 0.58
the 2015 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
BA1SFEERED
SBRENITEEE
2ENEER

07.12.2012 0.60 5,805,000 - - 1,320,000 4,485,000  From the day after 0.58
the 2016 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
B216FEEFER
EBATTEEE
#ENLEH
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Director

£ R

Date of
Offer
BEAW

22.07.2014

22.07.2014

Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise =~ at1.1.2014 Duringthe Duringthe  During at 31.12.2014

Price R20145 Year Year the Year R20145F
TEE 1BMBER  FRARE  TRTE FRAM 12BMBER
0.60 - 5,800,000 - 150,000 5,650,000
0.60 - 5,800,000 - 150,000 5,650,000

Exercise Period

T8

From the day after
the 2014 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
BNUFFREED
EBAZN6FFE
#ENEER

From the day after
the 2015 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
BA1SFEERED
ERARN6EERE
FBEREER

Closing Price of
the Securities
Immediately
before the Date
on Which the
Options were
Offered
SEBERE
REZHARS
WHE

0.59

0.59
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT NBEFERE

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company RAREBE - REBEART ZARER AR
and to the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, BEEMA BE2014F12A31B LLF
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not less B ARE—EHHERF EmRAMTHANLR
than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules 25% BEBEITIRGD 2 ARFRE -

during the year ended 31 December 2014.

AUDITOR = EED

KPMG will retire as auditors of the Company and, being eligible, EEHEHMEBMBRERRAZEZHE
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re- Bl - MRS ERLEEEEEE  BEES
appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company will be proposed REFTE BB ALRRBIZEAD 2 R H RS
at the annual general meeting. RIRFRBFRG LIRRE -

By order of the Board EEEE®m

Xu Xipeng E

Chairman Fia e

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015 HE 20153 A20H
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
KEE Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of KEE
Holdings Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 78 to 174, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.
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B BET SRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

20 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of

PrOfIt o\r Loss For the year ended 31 December 2014
mEBmERK m 5014 3 13 A 31 BULAE (NBRAI)
2014 2013
Note $°000 $°000
Likz3 Fr T

Turnover £ 3 2 165,359 160,841
Cost of sales SHEMN A (115,510) (111,927)
Gross profit EF 49,849 48,914
Other revenue Ha ez 3 2,495 2,804
Other net losses Hh g e F 8 (163) (1,278)
Distribution costs SaKi=ID %N (15,936) (16,921)
Administrative expenses TR (29,692) (28,542)
Profit from operations Fed =gyl 6,553 4,977
Finance costs BTSN 4(a) (417) -
Profit before taxation BRBE AT 2 4 6,136 4,977
Income tax Frig%t 5 (2,742) (2,064)
Profit for the year FERER 3,394 2,913
Attributable to: LT EIEEWS :

Equity shareholders RN 0

of the Company 8 3,661 3,061

Non-controlling interests FEIRRG AR RS (267) (148)
Profit for the year FERER 3,394 2,913
Basic and diluted earnings BREXR

per share (HK cents) BERF B 9 0.9 0.7
The notes on pages 87 to 174 form part of these financial FOTENT74 B 2 Wi A 5k 2 — &b
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders Do BAFARMNPENAAGERKEZ
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in f& 8 - HFIBEAHEE23(b) °
note 23(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income For the year ended 31 Decomber 2014

GEeEBERkAEMEEKRER e pota 122 51 L B SR A

2014 2013
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Profit for the year FREF 3,394 2,913
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKA
for the year
ltems that may be reclassified HignWaEmsEEERN
subsequently to profit or loss: THE -
— Exchange differences on — G BN ER
translation of the financial BTSRRI A
statements of subsidiaries RINE X Z= 8 (1,108) 10,001
Total comprehensive income FRAEZHEHBRALRHE
for the year 2,286 12,914
Attributable to: T EIEEN :
Equity shareholders KRR AR IR
of the Company 2,637 12,503
Non-controlling interests IR (351) 411
Total comprehensive income FAZHEBRAEE
for the year 2,286 12,914
The notes on pages 87 to 174 form part of these financial BT ENT4E 2 WA gk 2 — &6
statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position

e PRI R

At 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
72014412 A 31 B (LUBTHIR)

2014 2013
Note $°000 $°000
BiteE Frx T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Fixed assets & E & B 11
— Property, plant and equipment —WE - BEREE 211,874 189,179
— Lease prepayments —MHEBMNK 33,052 33,878
244,926 223,057
Intangible assets EmVEE 12 7,666 6,018
Prepayments for fixed assets & TE B EMTEN A 14 391 6,319
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 17(c) 1,961 2,105
254,944 237,499
Current assets RENEE
Inventories w8 15 18,369 17,101
Trade and other receivables g5 M EMEWEIE 16 41,535 40,036
Current tax recoverable BNERRT UL B FE IR 17(a) 1,173 204
Deposits with banks RITEHTFR 18 41,158 14,213
Cash and cash equivalents ReReEEY 18 37,975 81,666
140,210 153,220
Current liabilities mEEE
Bank borrowing RITEE 19 17,000 -
Trade and other payables E 5 R H M ER FIE 20 45,290 53,996
Current tax payable BNEARE IR 17(a) 33 78
62,323 54,074
Net current assets REBEEFE 77,887 99,146
Total assets less current liabilities @AEERABERE 332,831 336,645




2014 2013

Note $°000 $'000
liEs3 T T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIERE 17(c) 543 398
Net assets EERE 332,288 336,247
Capital and reserves EARRGEE 23
Share capital A% 4,150 4,150
Reserves & 303,654 307,262
Total equity attributable to equity 2 TR E
shareholders of the company L e 307,804 311,412
Non-controlling interests FEIERRE R 24,484 24,835
Total equity REREE 332,288 336,247

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 EEEMN 20159 3 A 20 B LI R )2
March 2015.

o

Xi Xipeng Xu Xinan EZE EE

Director Director Srem s g1

The notes on pages 87 to 174 form part of these financial F8TEN1TAB 2 WX A B RE 2 —3
statements. e
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Statement of Financial Position

B ISR &

At 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
72014412 A 31 B (LUBTHIR)

2014 2013
Note $°000 $°000
B &E Fr Tt
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interest in a subsidiary RN P 13 156,868 147,571
Current assets wEEE
Other receivables E th fE U FRIE 16 201 430
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEEY 18 84 26
| ZF . 456
Current liability nREAE
Other payables HfhpE T ERIE 20 254 221
Net current assets MENVE EFE 31 235
Net assets @ 156,899 147,806
Capital and reserves BEARREE 23
Share capital &N 4,150 4,150
Reserves G 152,749 143,656
Total equity RERAE 156,899 147,806

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 EE£2520154 3 A 20 A #t & I 5K T

March 2015. o
Xu Xipeng Xu Xinan EFE EE
Director Director GiEl B 1]

F8TENTAB 2B AT EHRET 2 —

statements. R4 o

The notes on pages 87 to 174 form part of these financial
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Consolidated Statement of
Changes in EqUity For the year ended 31 December 2014

ﬁﬂﬁ' *Eé % Ej] %% (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
i HE HZE2014F12 A31 BIEFE (B THIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
AATRERRER

Non-
Share  Capital Statutory Exchange Retained controling ~ Total
Share premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  eamnings interests  equity

captal &y A& EE ER O RE Tota  FHER i

hr BE  GBE  RE  BR BN #%  Es g8

Note ~ §000  §000  §000  §000  §000  §000 000  §000  $000
B fr fr Tt Tt fr fr fr fr T

Balance at 1 January 2013 R2M3E1F1BEE 4150 138,096 17211 16306 28365 99,598 303,786 11,894 315,680
Changes in equity for 2013; N1IEMELEE

Profitfor the year Egf - - - - - 3061 3,061 (148) 2913

Other comprehensive income E2ERA - - - - M2 - 944 559 10,001
Total comprehensive income 2EYNEE - - - - 9442 3061 12503 41 12914
Appropriation to AT RE

statutory reserve - - - 716 - (716) - - -
Dividends declared in respectof B EFEERMES 23(b)

the previous year - - - - - (8,300) (8,300) - (8300
Equity settled share-based WEREE RN

transactions AR5 23(f) - - 340 - - - 34 - 3403
Contribution from non-controlling SR ERRE TS

equity holders - - - - - - - 12530 12530
Share options lapsed during RERRNERE 2(c)

the year - - (378) - - 3718 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2013 RO13FE128 3 RER 4150 138,096 20316 17,022 37807 94021 31412 24835 336,247
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Consolidated Statement of

C h a n ges I n Eq u Ity For the year ended 31 December 2014
AN 3L 4= (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
lzl‘l'.lh‘ == *Eﬁﬁﬁib'%% HZE 2014412 A 31 BIFFE CABTIIR)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ALTRERREL
Non-
Share  Capital Statutory Exchange Retained controlling  Total
Share premium reserve reserve reserve earnings interests  equity

capital Bt X AR EXR  RE  Total FER  ER

R BE BE BE BE BN 4% EE 4%

Note ~ $%000  $000  $000 000  $000 000  $°000  $'000  $'000
i fr Fr T . fx T FTn Fn R

Balance at 1 January 2014 R2M4E1F1BEE 4150 138,096 20316 17,022 37,807 94021 311,412 24,835 336,247
Changes in equity for 2014: NI4ENEEEE

Profit for the year ERaEf - - - - - 3661 3661 (267) 3,304

Other comprehensive income E2ERA - - - - (1,024) - (1024 (84) (1,108)
Total comprehensive income 2EYNEE - - - - (1024) 3661 2637  (351) 2,286
Appropriation to AEETEE

statutory reserve - - - 110 - (110 - - -
Dividends declared in respect HLEESRIRE 23(b)

of the previous year - - - - - (83000 (8,300) - (8300
Equity settled share-based EREE RN 23(f)

fransactions THRERS - - 205 - - - 205 - 205
Share options lapsed during RERR N ERE 2(c)

the year - - (435) - - 435 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2014 R2014E128 3 RER 4150 138,096 21936 18123 36,783 88,716 307,804 24,484 332,288
The notes on pages 87 to 174 form part of these financial BT ENT4E 2 WA gk 2 — &6
statements. e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HZE2014F12 A31 B LFE (LUBTAIR)

2014 2013
Note $°000 $°000
BiteE Frx T
Operating activities RETEE
Profit before taxation FR A5 A 6,136 4,977
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation and amortisation e K8 4(c) 16,459 15,330
Impairment losses charged B 5 RAEMEWFIERE
on trade and other receivables EEFA 4(c) 327 37
Impairment losses charged/ FEREEE
(written back) on inventories A (R 15 115 (351)
Finance costs B TSR AR 4(a) 417 -
Interest income FEUA 4(c) (2,015) (2,379)
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets ~ HERETE L EMNEIEFEE 4(c) 171 1,019
Equity-settled share-based NHEREERMI A
payment expenses 4(b) 2,055 3,423
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss HNE (M), 518 (151) 1,253
23,514 23,309
Changes in working capital EEESRE
Increase in inventories FELM (1,390) (209)
(Increase)/decrease in trade B 5 R E A EURIE
and other receivables (Em), md (1,272) 7,917
(Decrease)/increase in trade B 5 R EAMFERTRIE
and other payables CRA),/ & m (1,564) 7,908
Cash generated from operations K& FERE 19,288 38,925
Income tax paid =ANIZIEEE 17(a) (3,463) (4,140)
Net cash generated from RETBHRBRESFHR
operating activities 15,825 34,785
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

GERTRER

EHZE2014F 12 A31 BIEFE (UUETIIR)

2014 2013
Note $°000 $'000
BisE Fr T
Investing activities REEE
Payment for the purchase of BEME  BER
property, plant and equipment B0k E (41,161) (70,345)
Proceeds from sale of property, LEME  BEK
plant and equipment HREBTERIA 1,617 494
Payment for the purchase BEETEENNRK
of intangible assets 12 (2,608) -
Interest received BUFLE 1,462 2,555
(Increase)/decrease in HRITE B
deposits with banks (3gn),wA (26,945) 28,107
Net cash used in investing RETEFMARESFE
activities (67,635) (39,189)
Financing activities REEE
Proceed from a new bank loan FRTTE RS IR 19 17,000 -
Dividends paid to equity shareholders Kt FANA AIfERS
of the Company e 0)95) 23(b) (8,300) (8,300)
Contribution from non-controlling IEIERERRREE
equity holders 13 - 12,530
Interest paid ERFE (414) -
Net cash generated from RETEHMERSFHE
financing activities 8,286 4,230
Net decrease in cash and ReRREEEYER
cash equivalents WD (43,524) (174)
Cash and cash equivalents R1A1HHNRER
at 1 January HEEEY 81,666 79,383
Effect of foreign exchange EXSENTE
rate changes (167) 2,457
Cash and cash equivalents R12A3MBNEBEER
at 31 December HEEEY 18 37,975 81,666

F8TENT4 B 2B AT S MwER 2 — 3

statements. 7o

The notes on pages 87 to 174 form part of these financial

N
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR R MY T

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which for the
current financial year and the comparative period
continue to be those of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
“Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections
76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“The Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Note 1(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEZHIN - FAERENBTE)

1 FESTHEER

(a)

EHREH

I SRR R IRBE S LRTAD
ANE(BEAGHMAE) BH2
FBERAESTEHREERN(F
B BHREER)  ZEEEE
FiT A 8 A ) BB R B B 15 3R
HAER - (BEGEEA]) (FH
2FER) REE - BEARE
RAREBCRRER Y Z HEE
HE - RETIRFE SR aHEG
(56228 ) R11ET76 E8T 51K
MABREEIIIEE RE] K
BERREBZBEMAETE - EA
BREKN AT BFERALER
HMEE A EE R aER (5
NE)MBREMBRE o 1o+ 11
EHBHRNTCEREEH AR
SFARAR ([ BEBBRA])E
HEMBRAPEANEERT -
REBAIRAZ EZSFTHCRRE
ZHIWT -

ERGRAIASBMGTETH
RISIEFT 2 B AT RE LR
BRAERI G AEE RARAFHAR
& HA R P 48 A sk AT R BT R
e RABE KRBTSR -
HRYIRER LB AEEE
ZIEI RISERI B AT RS &
AMER ST BRES 2 ED
[RERABI B REZ AR - HARERN
B mERMTE () -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

BAsIs OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 comprise KEE Holdings
Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as “the Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 28.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN - FIESENETETE)

1 FESTBEE)

(b)

MEBRREREE

#H E2014F12A31H EF &
HiRE M MR BERSERE
RAR(TARA]) REMB AT
(BRI AER]) -

REBRRRANABEER
R s pRARELAE -

EREEERENTEEAVBRE
HRMB B IRRE - AIEHEK
ROERALHEE - BfF WA
RXHMH2/EERTENH
B - B FIRRER o LA AIAE
AR ERBBEERMEEE
REEREAR/AENSER
R RDER - MAAFERKA
EREEEEIANAMREESE
2= FEE B BRE A B 1R 2T Y
Kig - ERERTTREBRINZE
flat e

EREeREENZEMA A
FARER - A SFHEFTRERTE
BIEHERTMMEELTE - A
BT S EZNE AR
ERRIERTEE A KR R EAR

FE - AEFLETHOHRE R
AR HER -

MEEERRABTB RS
AL H I EMBERBE
FENHE - ARG ATEE
M EERR - RHTFE28 55

]
e



1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments
to HKFRSs and one new interpretation that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

- Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27, Investment entities

- Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

- Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount

disclosures for non-financial assets

- HK (IFRIC) 21, Levies

These amendments and new interpretation do not

have an impact on these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.

1

FTESEEER (&)

(c)

B BEEE
TREGMASCEM TINER
MRS LR ZEFT R —EHR
B YRAEERARRNANE
AR B R AR - B T HIB R
EAREENPEREAR

- BEUBHREENFE0
% BAMBREEAE
125 R BB TR E 27
SRHIEET - KEEE

- BAEEEAFI2REHIE
Bl BEETHEERTH
B&

- BAEEEAFI6HEAIE
Rl FEe@EEZAKE

R

- BE(ERMBEREREZR
Bg)-REE21%  #F

ZEEFT R R BEE M SRR

4

AEEY ERANERN ST M
fe AR AR (AR 3T R R SRR R o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the

Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN - FIESENETETE)

1 FESTBEE)

(d)

MEARRIFERES
MEAREREIEAREEGNE
B-gAEEE2EERME A
BFomATERREEREN B
BRENEBEHERNEIRZE
ZEE R - RIARKEEHZE
B-RABAEBEELHESR
RN EEZEHEELER
(AAEEREMALRE) -

RHTE R BRIRE B SRR SA
EHAGAREMBRE  BEEE
HIERLLERRLE - KREARE
BOESR RS EEEZRE - A
REBANRRRRZSMELENE
MARBHRGEHN  ERELFES
MBRREH2HIEE - £EERN
REIAR ZAEENRSIREE
AEEEBBRETROERLT
DA 238 55 2R 28 3R )2 M AR R B0 05 0%
T LA -

FEERE R IFH AR A ERK
SR IEG Z B AR -
AEEAREZSRENFAEEE
BRI It - B AN B E
BLHZSHGEENTATRE
EEZENANER - WBEEHKE
HME  AEEREEZDAE
(a2 E R = PN s 3l
BEFER L PITET 8 FF A

< o
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with note
1(l) depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(h)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

1

TESTBR(E)

(d)

MEQRRIEERER (H)
IRIE R S 2 5N B M RSN
R rtEm—IR - BARE R
IRREEERDIRES] - AEH
REPOFEREEERFA
MR AELEERALR
FEFRE M AR AN R B R A AR
ZHENNERGABRER LGS
BamhEb2EKERATIR -
ARREFHE R RS R B AER
MEREEELREANEMLE
EEBDIRBMEA()HIRAE
HEIRRERA MBI R P
TRAEEEA -

FEARRARZHBAREZA B
JB AR AR BB AER AR
HABE B (B 1(h)(ii) P8R :
HMEERECHINERFERA
(SREFADIIEIER & 2 &40
A BIBRAN o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (note 1(h)(ii)).

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of an asset. The cost of self-
constructed items of property, plant and equipment
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and the borrowing costs (note

1(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 34 years after the date of

completion.

- Leasehold improvement is depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their

estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN - FIESENETETE)

1 FESTBEE)

(e)

V¥ - MERRZE

¥ BERRBEEEMBR
RERRIRK AR R E KR E
EEHNE (B 1(h)(i)) °

KABREBEEERBENE
M- agmE - BEARERAE
MRABREMBKA - BET
B FHRBBIE B A RIRER
B FTHE 3 [R5 M AR A B H) (T
(AR MEZ L PIEELT
BRREERA (HEE1(s)) °

WELHEYE - BFER&RERA
BHEE - DR EMERIEFE
HEMBEARANEMNEZE IR
AR & B MEREPER

WEDRME  BEIRER
B BB AN EL {5t /ISR E B (20
B) BTG ERFEHRA
MEAATE MM

- REELM EFHEFE H
FETARBAEA R
FAAERFHREEGE
(IR T A HIR T B 34
F)e

- HEXHEOWEDURR
TR HR By 5 7] B 53
(BE10F ) REERE -



1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
- Machinery 10 years

- Vehicles and other equipment 4-5 years
Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Construction in progress (“CIP”) represents property,
plant and equipment under construction and pending
installation, and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (note 1(h)(ii)).

Cost comprises direct costs of construction during
the construction period. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the CIP is transferred to property, plant and
equipment when the asset is substantially ready for its
intended use.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful

life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(h)(ii)).

1

TESTBR(E)

(e)

(f)

M - BERRE(E)

- e 10
- EWMkEMRE 4-5F

W% - BEMREETABEER
F—EOETRNAERES
ZERD PTG TR B AR & I
i %A R R
E - BENAERAFHRERR
EBE(E)BEFRE—K -

FRIB(ERIR] 2EH
ERMGLEENYE  BE KRR
- WIRR AR A E R EER
(MFEE 1(h)(ii) BIR) °

KABEZENRNERRZER
Ko HEERB ERAIMERERE
B ZERARELERE - &
BRTRABAME  BELRE
BEAEA -

BLEE
AEBMEANELEETINY
AR R NIR R MBI R 5T 35
(EERMGET A EAFH) KR
EEE (R 1(h) (i) 518 -
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MR R MR

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(9)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following
intangible asset with finite useful life is amortised from
the date it is available for use and its estimated useful
life is as follows:
- Software 5-10 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are

reviewed annually.

OPERATING LEASE CHARGES

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease terms, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN - FIESENETETE)

1 FESTBEE)

()

(9)
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

(i) Impairment of current and non-current receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:
- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.

1 FESHBRE)

(hy EERE

(1)

B R FE B JE W K TR Y
Jet1E

TR ED K JE T B FE WK R
SETEFRE LR -
NHEEASEERAEF
B RENTEFEEIE
AT~ —IBEs ZIHS A S
ErEmBREHHIE
RER

- EBAERMR :
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MR R MR

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

()

Impairment of current and non-current receivables
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

- For current and non-current receivables
carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

unless otherwise indicated)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(h)

()

(if)

Impairment of current and non-current receivables
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- pre-paid interests in leasehold land

classified as being held under an operating
lease;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN - FIESENETETE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 ESFHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(h)  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED) (h) EEREGE)

(i) B EEmEE (&)
BRAE R

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
- intangible assets; and -

ARRMBRREK D
RHEBARRIRE -

- investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s -

statement of financial position.

HETMEFETFREFE
Alg st AREEN TR

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

98

C4&% o
Calculation of recoverable amount FrEKE SR
The recoverable amount of an asset is the BEEMAKEESES
greater of its fair value less costs to sell HARnBREHBEEN
and value in use. In assessing value in REHGREEMRE

use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(h)

(if)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.
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MR R MR

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

1)

INVENTORIES
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the

period in which the reversal occurs.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(h)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN - FIESENETETE)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESHBE ()
(CONTINUED)

(k) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (k) RERELEEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank ReERREEEWRERITLTF
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and SEIRE - IRITHEM S REER
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly AT R R AT R R B AR
liquid investments that are readily convertible into HEBRRBMEERE  m&E
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an REMEBEEZHEREE  BR
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been BARS=EARNDE -

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

()  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES () EBESRHMEMNRE
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at B REMENREBNSEIN
fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost BEMR - H1& BR8N A7
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in R RIEMBEBRNTET S
which case they are stated at cost. K RUEERT - BIRKATIER o
(m) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (m) EERH
(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions (i) K HIEES 8 R EEE RN
to defined contribution retirement plans FTEIRy R
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, e FEFEL BFHF
contributions to defined contribution retirement R~ HBEHFUR KRG S8
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits R IE & AR FI K AN 1
are accrued in the year in which the associated e B IR AE R R 75 8 5
services are rendered by employees. Where EErHE o i Ll 5RIBHE
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect FELE SRt - mA
would be material, these amounts are stated at MrE2Ea X AZERE
their present values. HIRBEANE o
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MR R MR

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

(if)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the binomial lattice model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

unless otherwise indicated)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

INCOME TAX

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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MR R MR

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN - FIESENETETE)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or
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MR R MR

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

(p)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to be
the point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful lives of the asset by way of

reduced depreciation expense.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

the effective interest method.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

For the purpose of presenting these financial
statements, the Group adopted Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) as its presentation currency. The functional
currencies of the Company, KEE International (BVI)
Company Limited (“KEE International BVI”), and
KEE Zippers Corporation Limited (“‘KEE Zippers”) are
HK$ and the functional currencies of the subsidiaries
established in The People’s Republic of China (“the
PRC”) are Renminbi (“RMB”).

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
HK$ at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated
into HK$ at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(r)

(s)

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

BORROWING cOSTS

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

RELATED PARTIES

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
— unless otherwise indicated)
/E\ji%iﬁ% BT#EI (BREAETHIN - FTESEENETTE)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 ESFHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(s) RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED) (s) BEER (&)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) fEfF& TFEM MM - BN
following conditions applies: ERREAEEBRE

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of () ZEEERAEEER
the same Group (which means that each AR—SB2KER
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is CIQ:IE=S S/ = I b
related to the others); BRRIRRAZMBEA

al)

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture (i) —HERBARSE®
of the other entity (or an associate or joint M E RN RIREE D
venture of a member of a group of which ¥(HE5—EBRBRK
the other entity is a member); BRAIZEBEE T

BRAZEBERARK
HEME)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) MEERHRR—
third party; ZHMAERE

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity (iv) —HEBRE=FE
and the other entity is an associate of the BHaEhE M5
third entity; —BRRZFE=1E

Eo)d—lNG]

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit (v) EBBRRAEEEE
plan for the benefit of employees of either SEBEECEEM
the Group or an entity related to the Group; 1B BN &8 7 8B

BFEE

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled (vi) EBZ(a)fTsBIAL
by a person identified in (a); PRI SR

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) A (a)(i)Frsknl AL
influence over the entity or is a member HERBEBEAXED
of the key management personnel of the NBZER(NZE
entity (or of a parent of the entity). BRMAR)EEE

BEKE o
Close members of the family of a person are those AR ALTHEIRRIEEZEER
family members who may be expected to influence, or %E TEERT B Z B AT T %
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the THENREKE -

entity.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in these financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for the financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

1

ETEEEE &)

(t)

2R E

EB DR EMBRERAZT
BENEMERE  HtRAALE
BEEBMOEMEDEERR
FHEEEEMERAAZHZR
EEABRUNMBEEEPRE
illlael

BEREENKREDBIEEFIA
HEBHRE A EMZEFLE
DESERMREMLE AET
FHE  EPEMHERE - 5
EmIRERBOTENEEE
BRENABESEERMEYBE
L RItERIER o BRI T EZ AL
EOEBMRT A ERED &K
- AT RAR A —ERED

B e
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2

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
sale of zippers and other related products such as flat knit

ribs, premium items and other products.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied
to customers. The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BB - FIESRENBTETE)

S
REBMEBEBARER B EA R
REMAABER - FImE SRS - 12
R AMER -

LEERBREATEFHEEMMSHER
B-RFEA EEXETHERIANE—
TERANKESFEAT

2014 2013

$°000 $000

Tt T

Zippers and sliders Fr i & hisE 145,924 150,024
Flat knit ribs TR ZR AT 13,159 6,389
Premium items and others Em&kEM 6,276 4,428
165,359 160,841

No individual customer had transactions exceeding 10% of

the Group’s turnover.

BMERNEFPNXFEBBAEESE
EHR10% °

OTHER REVENUE Hw A
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Government grants BT e 480 425
Interest income FBUA 2,015 2,379
2,495 2,804

During 2014, the Group was awarded unconditional
government grants of HK$480,000 (2013: HK$425,000) as
recognition of the Group’s contribution to the development of

the local economy.

20145 - A K EEEGTBUTHE
$480,0007% 7T (2013 4F : 425,000 8
L) ERAREHE AT ERRATE
HE B2 RRA



4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

4

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BR B A A

BB AT SRR (GEA) THIRIE

(a) FINANCE cosTs (a) BBRA
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Interest on bank advances IRITRFEF B 417 -
(b) STaAFF cosTs* (b) BIRaE*
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
Fx T
Salaries, wages and other benefits T & - H/KMEMEF] 51,232 49,920
Contributions to defined A FE REH FURIRET 2
contribution retirement plans {EH AR 5,102 5,248
Equity-settled share-based DESEERD A
payment expenses (note 22) sz (FiEE22) 2,055 3,423
58,389 58,591
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BB - FIESRENBTETE)

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 4 PBRBADGEF (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) OTHER ITEMS (c) HfmA
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
o T
Depreciation and amortisation* EREHE
— lease prepayments (note 11) —HEFEIR(FIEE11) 709 705
— property, plant and equipment — W% - BE REE
(note 11) (fF5E11) 14,803 13,779
— intangible assets (note 12) —mBEE (M:E12) 947 846
16,459 15,330
Auditors’ remuneration ZE D &
— audit services —EBZR 1,111 1,111
— tax services — BT ART% 182 64
— other services — E AR 354 352
1,647 1,527
Impairment losses charged BEBETAEZS
on trade and other R H A EUGRIR
receivables (note 16(b)) (FF5E 16(b)) 327 37
Operating lease charges: KERERY
minimum lease payments SERERHR
— hire of plant and machinery* —THFANRRE K es* 4,886 4,647
— hire of other assets —MHREMEE (B
(including property rentals) VE ) 306 1,156
5,192 5,803
Net foreign exchange loss PE 5 518 558 154 447
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets & BT & E MR8 F5E 171 1,019
Research and development HE MR
expenses on new products 1,926 2,220
Cost of inventories* FEmAR* 115,510 111,927

TFERK AN A 53,760,000 % 7T (2013 F -
52,379,000 ) B8 TR A - HTE -
BEHERMRKEHERER %52
HMEER EX M 4(b) FIERE
ERMAEA -

* Cost of inventories includes HK$53,760,000 (2013: HK$52,379,000)
relating to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation expenses and
operating lease charges, which amounts are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in note 4(b) for
each of these types of expenses.
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR

LOSS REPRESENTS:

5

mEBRBRANEHR

(a) HEBBERANAEHRIE

2014 2013
$°000 $°000
Tt T
Current tax - PRC BIEABLIE — P &
corporate income tax EFREH
Provision for the year FNEE 2,524 3,350
Over-provision in respect B FERERE
of prior years (104) (1,278)
2,420 2,072
Current tax — Hong Kong BEABiE — & E
Profits Tax FIBH
Provision for the year FNBE 33 795
Deferred tax EEHIE
Origination and reversal TR ERE
of temporary differences EEREME 289 (803)
2,742 2,064
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5 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED 5 HREBIERAWAEH(E)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING (b) BEMIERBEARETENS
PROFIT AT APPLICABLE TAX RATES: sHRAMERIIEHOT ¢
2014 2013
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Profit before taxation BB A A 6,136 4,977
Notional tax on profit before FRA AR A B 2 &

taxation, calculated at the rates TiIE - &% A

applicable to profits in the AERER % 3 F Y

jurisdiction concerned (note i) TR E (MsEi) 3,087 2,683
Effect of non-deductible expenses TR HIRF X FI 2 & 121 543
Effect of non-taxable income FEERTRA R R E (73) -
Effect of tax losses not recognised ~ RIERNIREEIENTE 389 76
Effect of tax concessions (note ii) MBEENTZE (M) (836) (221)
PRC dividend withholding tax B AR S TR (P L i)

(note iii) 145 93
Over-provision in prior years B FERRERE (104) (1,278)
Others A 13 168
Actual tax expense ERHRIERY 2,742 2,064
(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the (i) RERSHEREBEX

Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands HE(RBEXES]®
(“BVI”), the Group is not subject to any income EBVER - NREBHEAR
tax in the Cayman Islands or the BVI. FEHESNABRELAHAS

BANERPRISTR

KEE Zippers is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax 5 85 2014 4F 22013
at 16.5% in 2014 and 2013. FHEE16.5% N EHNE
BREH
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5

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING

PROFIT AT APPLICABLE TAX RATES: (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iif)

KEE (Guangdong) Garment Accessories Limited
(“KEE Guangdong”) was recognised as a High
and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”) and
was entitled to a preferential income tax rate of
15% up to 2015. Except for KEE Guangdong,
the statutory income tax rate applicable to the
Company’s other subsidiaries in mainland China
was 25%.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC and its relevant regulations, PRC-resident
enterprises are levied withholding income tax
at 10% on dividends to their non-PRC-resident
corporate investors for earnings accumulated
beginning on 1 January 2008. Undistributed
earnings generated prior to 1 January 2008 are
exempted from such withholding tax. Under the
Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement and
its relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong
tax resident which is the “beneficial owner” and
holds 25% or more of the equity interest of a
PRC-resident enterprise is entitled to a reduced
withholding tax rate of 5%. As at 31 December
2014, deferred tax liability recognised in this
regard was HK$543,000 (2013: HK$398,000)
(see note 17(b)).

5 GERBmRANFES (&)

(b) BEMXEZBARRIENS
sORMKH RGBT (&) -

(i)

(iii)

M5 (ER)REEMFAR
RENTFAZER]) KHER
REFEmdE (R
Mzl XFH15%H)
BEPTE B T E2015
FoRAZERIN ER
PR 22 B A AP P 3 A
MEBRRMEEMSFHRE
#525% ©

RIE R B EREBER
HEBKG  AEERD
¥ 3 52008F1 18 #
WEFTBAMEIEPEHE
ROZEBREEHERGTKRE -
JH B M10% /) T8 40 B o
7200841 B 1H A/ E &
B oK 5 R B ) EER R TE N
e BRERDEFSRE
& 55 OB A B LE R B &Y
ZHREBBER  EA
[BEXEAAl WHEPEH
BER M E25% sk A _ERA
HEMERNEEREE
RAM&R e ENHHEE 5%
B o 2014412 A 31
A BREHIEA G
2 /543,000 JT(2013
4 : 398,000/ 7T ) (AP HE
17(b)) °
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/E\Zl-i%iﬁ%% BT#EI ?ﬁ%%*ﬁé}‘ﬂﬂﬁ\\ 'I ﬁﬁlﬁﬁléﬁuiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ)
6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 6 E=HN
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BZ0UENANALEE
Salaries, Share-based
allowances  Retirement payment
and benefits scheme (note)
inkind ~ contribution NEREE
Directors’ fees  ¥& 28 Bk Sub-Total Bty ft Total
E=He  RENEA TR At (Hfa) @5t
$'000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

% R

Chairman Ed:3

Xu Xipeng ke 240 52 13 845 - 845
Executive directors HTES

Xu Xinan frm 240 525 13 778 = 778
Chow Hoi Kwang AR 360 - - 360 - 360

Non-executive director FHTES
Yang Shaolin B 144 - - 144 = 144

Independent non-executive  BIEHTES

directors
Lin Bin 1 168 - - 168 - 168
Kong Hing Ki LEH 144 - - 144 - 144
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy EE 144 - - 144 - 144

1,440 1,17 26 2,583 2,583
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6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 6 EZHFM(E)

(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE013F12 A3 ALERE
Salaries, Share-based
allowances  Retirement payment
and benefits scheme (note)
inkind  contribution NiEREE
Directors fees % » 284 B SubTotal  BGXM Total
EEmE  REWEN  GEEX It i) &t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T i i R T T
Chairman I
Xu Xipeng Siaks 200 400 4 604 - 604
Executive directors HiTES
Xu Xinan Ei§ 413 200 337 4 541 - 541
Chow Hoi Kwang By 300 - - 300 83 383

Non-executive director FHTES
Yang Shaolin BOH 120 - - 120 83 203

Independent non-executive  BIXHTES

directors
Lin Bin i 140 - - 140 83 23
Kong Hing Ki TEH 120 - - 120 83 203
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy EfiE 120 - - 120 83 203

1,200 737 8 1,945 415 2,360
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120

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)

Note:

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors
under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these share options
is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(n)(ii) and, in accordance with that
policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years
where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number
of options granted, are set out in note 22.

There were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any
of the highest paid individuals set out in note 7 below as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office. There was
no arrangement under which a director has waived or agreed to waive any

emoluments.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2013: two) are directors, whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 6. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

other three (2013: three) individuals are as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BB - FIESRENBTETE)

EEFM R
it

FZERBREREADNAERET S EEERR
Wi 2 EETBIE - 2 SHEREZ BETIIREN
HA(n) (i) IRAEBEHRBEUARO XA S 2
EETBURETE - MARBZECGK - AHAEERRE
BEBOBEFERNER T ANEEATHZ I
25 H L EIEHMAE -

ZEEDHNEZHB(BRERHBRENER
R BB ) M 22 PR -

AEEMEENRENTFEERTXMETAH
S FH A TR EFA LB AR R E N
BAREERERIMAKA RS REERAHE o 8
BEENEXRZREEAH O -

REHMAL

TEZmFMALY B2E2LES
(20134 : 24) - HERFHNRKITES
FRIFTE - BINSH(20135F : 38 ) &S
FMA TR HBEENT

2014 2013

$°000 $°000

F5 T

Salaries and other emoluments Fre M E b e 1,242 2,044
Discretionary bonuses BITETEAL 84 155
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIBER 117 182
Share-based payments LARR 7 32 A< ) 52 H 400 192
1,843 2,573




INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 7 EBEEFMAL(E)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The emoluments of the three (2013: three) individuals with 3% (20134 : 3& ) mmF A THE
the highest emoluments are within the following band: B FLA T E -
2014 2013
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A ABL
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z21,000,000 87T 3 2
HK$1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,000,& 7T £ 1,500,000,5 7T - 1
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 8 ZAPTAEZREENLEIR
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated result attributable to equity shareholders of ARaEzBRRELES XE
the Company includes a loss of HK$4,662,000 (2013: loss B4 4,662,000 7 7T 2 E5 18 (2013 4F ¢
of HK$5,827,000) which has been dealt with in the financial 5,827,000/8 T2 BB ) B st AR T
statements of the Company. BT A o
Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit it FEAR R FRE N 2 EHER
for the year:
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
T T
Amount of consolidated result STARR B ISIREA
attributable to equity shareholders SRR AR A R
dealt with in the Company’s
financial statements (4,662) (5,827)
Dividend from a subsidiary PIBEBEEEN
attributable to the profits of B AREF
previous financial years, approved BB (RFE Rz
and paid during the year WE ) 20,000 12,800
Company’s profit for the year PAN/NS KD
(note 23(a)) (FF 23(a)) 15,338 6,973
Details of dividends paid to equity shareholders of the BN FTARGEEBREZRE 2

Company are set out in note 23(b).

FEIBEEHIFE23(b) °
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9

10

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$3,661,000 (2013: HK$3,061,000) and
the weighted average of 415,000,000 ordinary shares
(2013: 415,000,000) in issue during the year.

(b) DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
The effect of the Company’s share options was anti-
dilutive for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2014. Therefore, diluted earnings per share are the

same as the basic earnings per share.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by geographical
areas. On 23 August 2014, the Group reorganised the
structure of reportable segments by merging segments of
“Southern China”, “Eastern China” and “Central China” to
one reportable segment of “Mainland China” as they have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products, the nature of production processes,
the type of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
The comparative amounts in segment reporting have been
adjusted accordingly.

Accordingly, the Group has presented the following two
reportable segments in a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”) for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

9

10

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN - FIESENEBTETE)

BRER

(a) BREXER
GREARBF TR E AR B #
% IR B FE 1505 7 3,661,000 78 7T
(20134 : 3,061,000/87T) M4
NE BT EEKR 2 ME
F15£7415,000,0000% (20134 :
415,000,000 %) 5+ & -

(b) BREBRF
RAREREREZE2013F &
2014F12AMALEFEERR
HEEE - FAit - GRESERT
BEREARZFER -

% R
RNEBIZ N E B EER - R 2014F
8A23H AEBEEEAZHHBH
g - [ Em ] [ER]R[EP] A
EHHBEMAHEANM] —ET2
WA ERNEERULERER
FTEMME £ERFUHE - BFPE
B oHERAAREERRITRA

EEE -  DBREPHLERBTOA
FRFEFE o

%EAW$E@£E%“%/}% RE(EXE
RERKE ] AHBEREHUHRER
7 B S E“?T?%Zifﬁﬂ’ﬂ‘ﬁf'ﬁﬁg
EE2HTIIMER2H D o



10 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a)

Mainland China: this segment manufactures zippers
products and mainly sells to customers in mainland
China. Currently its activities are mainly carried out in
Guangdong, Zhejiang and Hubei provinces.

Overseas: this segment purchases zipper products
from segment of Mainland China and sells to overseas
customers. Its activities are mainly carried out in Hong

Kong.

SEGMENT RESULTS AND SEGMENT ASSETS

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s CODM monitors the results and assets
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investments in
financial assets and deferred tax assets.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to

those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted profit before taxation” i.e. “turnover less
cost of sales, distribution costs and administrative
expenses”. ltems not specifically attributed to individual
segment are excluded from the calculation of segment
profit. The Group’s CODM is provided with segment
information concerning segment revenue, profit and
assets. Segment liabilities are not reported to the
Group’s CODM regularly.

10

i)

(a)

BHE (&)

TEAM: ZoBRENEE
o YERHEETFTHEAMLTES
BP HEBIZRERAE M
TH B & T

/YN o EEPEA S BB
ARHEER - WIHE TBINTS
BEF HEBERIENEEE

GE

THEERTHEE

FRF IS 0 BB R IR KR 0 AR 0 B
BRME  AEBETELERE
ERATEREIERRE D BIE
HORBREE -

DHEEREMERY  BVE
ERRBEE  HEBEERE
NMIBFEFRIBE BRI ©

W kA WBLET
BB £ HY3H B MK S
X - RBIHZS
BENTESEE
ARl Es M FASE

p=1113
4

ok Dk

Bﬁ;&f{ﬁ

HH I \X?
N

El
-+t}+
Pl
P

AR E D ERE N T ER [48
HEBHAGRM] - BT ZEXE
EEE RO ~ ) PR R AT
X o SHEDEEME - XA
AFEIEEBRERI D NIEE -
AEEGRIRRERKERM
BHED MK BN REEND
MER - AEETEEHRIR
RERREZHROBEE -
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E\ji%iﬁ% BT#EI (BREAETHIN - FTESEENETTE)
10 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 10 DEHE (&)

(a) SEGMENT RESULTS AND SEGMENT ASSETS (CONTINUED) (a) IHEBERIBEE (B
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments D RIFEEL = 2014 FF K 2013 F 12
as provided to the Group’s CODM for the purposes A3 BILEEMEIRD B &
of resource allocation and assessment of segment DEPRIBAAER EBLERE
performance for the years ended 31 December 2014 EREAEAREETZ2®mD B
and 2013 respectively is set out below: EREINAT

Year ended 31 December 2014

BE2014F12 A3 BLEE
Mainland

China Overseas Total

HEIRH -7 @t

$°000 $°000 $°000

Tr Tr Fr

Revenue from external customers RENRBEW G 142,531 22,828 165,359
Inter-segment revenue HEprEdE 15,967 80 16,047
Reportable segment revenue AE2HD B 158,498 22,908 181,406
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 2R BEF(BE) 9,534 (578) 8,956
Interest income from bank deposits BOFEHRZFBBA 1,968 47 2,015
Interest expense FERX - (#7) (#7)
Depreciation and amortisation for the year 4T J i (15,998) (461) (16,459)
Reportable segment assets at year end FANTZHRIHEE 350,729 44,083 394,812

Additions to non-current segment FANBIERE

assets during the year BENRE 20,953 21,989 42,942
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10 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

SEGMENT RESULTS AND SEGMENT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

10 7 EHE (K)
(a) DEBEMARDBEE (M)

Year ended 31 December 2013

BZE213F12A31HIEEE
Mainland
China Overseas Total
A o st
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Revenue from external customers REMRBF Y 126,610 34,231 160,841
Inter-segment revenue A EEE 23,106 130 23,236
Reportable segment revenue 2R Mz 149,716 34,361 184,077
Reportable segment profit A 2HAHEF 5,926 3,062 8,988
Interest income from bank deposits FITFETZFBBA 1,243 1,136 2,379
Depreciation and amortisation for the year 4T J i (15,316) (14) (15,330)
Reportable segment assets at year end FANTZHRIHEE 378,742 11,602 390,344
Additions to non-current segment FANBIERDEE
assets during the year ERE 77,653 5,497 83,150

RECONCILIATIONS OF REPORTABLE SEGMENT REVENUES, PROFIT

(b) WEHoHBUE BRNREER

OR LOSS AND ASSETS EENHER
2014 2013
$°000 $000
T T
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue A 23 H = 181,406 184,077
Elimination of inter-segment R 5 EB AU R
revenue (16,047) (23,236)
Consolidated turnover (note 2) #F& & £% (Mizk2) 165,359 160,841
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10
(b)

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

RECONCILIATIONS OF REPORTABLE SEGMENT REVENUES, PROFIT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BB - FIESRENBTETE)

7 E RS ()
(b) T2HH WS - HRREER

10

OR LOSS AND ASSETS (CONTINUED) BEENHR(E)
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Profit bl
Reportable segment profit BES G 8,956 8,988
Elimination of unrealised profit PO HEESFE -
of inter-segment purchase of B EENEEERE
inventories, other assets and HIARE IR R
fixed assets 198 458
Reportable segment profit REXAEEIREFH
derived from the Group’s T 235 ZEF
external customers 9,154 9,446
Other revenue and other net loss B U5 K H i 5518 558 2,332 1,526
Unallocated head office and ROBCLEE RERT
corporate expenses (5,350) (5,995)
Consolidated profit before RERBANRF
taxation 6,136 4977
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SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 10 DEHE (&)
(b) RECONCILIATIONS OF REPORTABLE SEGMENT REVENUES, PROFIT (b) TERSBWE - BRREBER
OR LOSS AND ASSETS (CONTINUED) BEENHR(E)
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets A2HHIEE 394,812 390,344
Elimination of unrealised profit ST #§0 S EFE
of inter-segment purchase of R HME ERREREF
inventories and other assets (1,182) (1,319)
Elimination of unrealised profit  JH % 2EfE & EFE
of inter-segment purchase BENREE R
of fixed assets (722) (867)
392,908 388,158
Deferred tax assets FREFRTBE B 1,961 2,105
Unallocated head office and ROoEHREEEE
corporate assets 285 456
Consolidated total assets HEEEHE 395,154 390,719
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10 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(©)

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The geographical location of customers is based
on the location at which the goods were delivered.
The revenue of the Group mainly derived from sales
to customers in Mainland China except for sales of
HK$22,828,000 (2013: HK$34,231,000) to overseas
customers for the year ended 31 December 2014 (note
10(a)).

The geographical location of the Group’s fixed assets,
intangible assets and prepayment for fixed assets
(the “Specified Non-current Assets”) is based on the
physical location of the asset, in the case of property,
plant and equipment, the location of the operation
to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible
assets. As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s non-
current assets were located in Mainland China and
Hong Kong with carrying amount of HK$231,427,000
(2013: HK$229,866,000) and HK$21,556,000 (2013:
HK$5,528,000) respectively.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BB - FIESRENBTETE)

10 ZEHmE (&)

(c)

it EE R
REFEMREIZEEMEEREL

5 B E2014F12A31H 1
FE AEEREFEREFEH
W E P HIEE - mikes s
B P8 & 1522,828,000% JT
(20134 : 34,231,000787C) (Mf7E
10(a)) °

AEBEETEE  BRAERE
FTEEBNR(HEIERBE
ENDFEHMERDE  BE X
BEMEIREEBRAEMEE
D REREEMS  BREE
Fro Bl @B Sl o 20144
PRANHBAEEEZZEMRAFEH
RERBEBZIERBDEEREE
3Bl 231,427,000 7 7T (2013 4F
229,866,000/8 7T) 52 21,556,00075 7T
(20134F : 5,528,000/ L) °



11 FIXED ASSETS 11 BEEE

THe GRrRoup rEE
Vehicles
and other
equipment  Leasehold Construction Lease
Buildings ~ Machinery ER improvement  in progress Sub-total prepayments Total

g7 BE  HfRE  BERE  £EIE M BERM it
§7000 $000 $°000 §7000 $°000 §'000 $7000 $°000
T T T T T T T T

Cost: A

A1 January 2013 #2013 1A1R 36,528 9,27 11,260 12,008 21,13 176,148 UAN 210568
Exchange adjustments & 5% 1,141 3,146 1 37 1813 6,828 1,079 7907
Additions HE - 2547 970 365 72,953 76,83 - 76,83
Disposals HE& - (822) (587) - (747) (2,156) - (2,156)
Transfer from CIP BERIRER - 6,016 - 345 (6,361) - - -

At31 December 2013 H20135F12431R
and 1 January 2014 R201451 A1 37,669 106,104 11,984 13,105 88,793 257,69 35,499 293,154

Exchange adjustments % 55% (127) (322) (32) (44) (307) (832) (120) (952)
Additions AE 79 1,130 1,856 14 36,364 30,943 - 30,943
Disposals HE& - (1,330) (253) (88) (1,215) (2,886) - (2,886)
Transfer from CIP BEETRER 21,846 10,371 - - (32.217) - - -

At31December 2014 #20145128318 50467 115,953 13,595 12,987 91,918 293,880 35,379 329,259
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B Rk BﬁEI (BSAB - FELENETHE)
11 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 11 BEEE (&)
THE GROUP (CONTINUED) AEE (F)
Vehicles
and other
equipment  Leasehold Construction Lease
Buildings ~ Machinery SER improvement inprogress  Sub-total prepayments Total

g7 BE  HfRE  BERE  £EIE M BERM it
§7000 $000 $°000 §7000 $°000 §'000 $7000 $°000
T T T T T T T T

Accumulated ZiFE:

depreciation:
At 1 January 2013 RO13E1A18 7679 32,185 7544 6,089 - 53497 877 54,374
Exchange adustments [ £:3% 269 1,120 231 23 - 1843 39 1,882
Charge forthe year ~ FRSH] 1,729 8,800 1,148 2,102 - 13779 705 14,484
Written back on WHEREE

disposals - (200) (“43) - . (643) - (643
At31 December 2013 72013512831 B

adtJnay 2014 ROWEIA1E 96T 4905 8480 8414 - 68T 161 70097
Exchange adjustments [ 5% (26) (103) (23) (23) - (175) ) (178)
Charge for the year ERTH 2,148 10,059 1,046 1,550 - 14,803 709 15,512
Written back on R ERED

disposals - (654) (244) - - 0m) - 0%
M3 December20t4  HWETRANE 1799 5007 9250 9941 - B 21 3%

Caryingamount,  fREfE:
At31 December 2014 12014512 31H 47,668 64,946 4,296 3,046 91,918 211,874 33,052 244,926

At31December2013  H2013F 128318 27992 64,199 3,504 4,691 88,793 189,179 33818 223,057
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11 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

THe GROUP (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The lease prepayments are for land use rights held on

a medium-term lease of 50 years in the PRC.

Certain lease prepayments and buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$30,555,000 (2013:
HK$32,408,000) were pledged as securities for un-
utilised bank facilities of the Group amounting to
RMB26,000,000 (equivalent to HK$32,957,000) as at
31 December 2014 (2013: RMB26,000,000, equivalent
to HK$33,069,000).

The Group acquired land use rights for the new
production plant set up in Hubei Province of the PRC
with cash consideration of HK$29,395,000 pursuant to
the Investment Project Agreement (“the Agreement”)
entered into between one of the Group’s subsidiary,
KEE Guangdong, and Jingmen local government
in 2012. Upon the full payment of the above land
use right consideration, the Group will be entitled to
a government grant amounting of RMB13,651,000
(equivalent to HK$17,363,000), subject to the fulfilment
of the agreed conditions as set out in the Agreement.
When the Group fulfils these conditions in the future,
the related grant will be recognised in accordance with

the Group’s accounting policy set out in note 1(p)(ii).

The office building in Hong Kong with the net book
value as at 31 December 2014 amounting to HK$
21,409,000 (2013: nil) is under medium-term lease.

11

BE&E (%)
S ()

(a)

HEFEM TR ER 50+ #E
ERBH LU ERRE -

MN2014E12 8318 #EE @
{8 430,555,000 7% 7T (2013 4F :
32,408,0005 ) W& THETE
NRREFEREEBHARE A
R17{= AEEE AR 26,000,000
7T (FE 7 32,957,000 7T) (2013
F: AR¥26,000,0007T 0 HHE
733,069,000 870 ) {EHK I -

20124 « ANEEK — R E
ARIF S EREFIPIE AT R]
vEREBEEBE(ZBE]
Uiz B8 15 7R BB b A o (5 A AR
ERIFAEEIR B2RE
#%29,395,000/% T o £ Lt +
i AR EZEEME A%
] 71 1T % 16h 5 P 3 89 40 7E R 1
BRT - SEREBRN@EDEE
P AR 13,651,000 (85 ©
17,363,000/ 7T ) - NE[E H %
EWMZEGMHE  BEEDSE
BAEMEE 1(p) (i) I & 5T R T
LARERR ©

7 A & B & ¥ A1 F R 2014
F12A31HB W & @ F A &
21,409,00077C(2013F « &) -
R EIFEAT -
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BEEE
The Group
Software
AEBETH
$°000
T
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2013 20131 H1H 8,589
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 5 B 269
At 31 December 2013 7" 2013912 A31H
and 1 January 2014 20141 H1H 8,858
Exchange adjustments bE (18)
Addition IR 2,608
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12 A31H 11,448
Accumulated amortisation: E-: 5
At 1 January 2013 7201341 H1H 1,921
Exchange adjustments b AR 73
Amortisation for the year FNEEH 846
At 31 December 2013 7K 2013912 A31H
and 1 January 2014 &2014F1H1H 2,840
Exchange adjustments bE 5 (5)
Amortisation for the year FNEEH 947
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12 A31H 3,782
Carrying amount: BRMEIME :
At 31 December 2014 #2014 12 A31H 7,666
At 31 December 2013 72013412 A31H 6,018

FRBHEAFT AGREBER [1THEA

“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of X]H e

The amortisation charge for the year is included in

profit or loss.
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13

INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY

13

R B QR RS

The Company

/N
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
T T
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LT - AR - -
Amount due from KEE Zippers FEUN B 5 R s 5K IR 156,868 147,571
156,868 147,571
Details of subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December 2014 #2014F12 8318 » ARRIHEBRA A
are set out below: BRFBEEIINT
Place of
incorporation/ Attributable
establishment Issued and fully equity interest
and business paid up capital FEAh B AE Principal
Name of company 13 23Tk  Direct Indirect activities
AR ER FR ALt B 367 BERAE HiE BiE FEER
KEE The British Virgin 2 ordinary shares of 100% —  Investment
International BVI Islands (“BVI”) USD1 each holding
2 Bl BVI RBREZHS 2R EAREE 1 ZET 100% - BEERK
((EERLES]) Ok BT
KEE Zippers Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares - 100%  Trading of
zipper
products
S h i B 1,000,000 fi% - 100% EBEN#EESD
KEE Guangdong* The PRC HK$137,500,000 - 100%  Manufacture
and sale of
zipper
products
FZER" 5 137,500,000 % 7T - 100% AERHEE
I FE o
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13 INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY 13 RIMBATINER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Attributable
establishment Issued and fully equity interest
and business paid up capital FEAh B AE Principal
Name of company i3 23Tk  Direct Indirect activities
AR ER FR AL B 37 BERAE B EiE FEER
KEE Zhejiang* The PRC USD8,760,000 - 100%  Manufacture
and sale of
zipper
products
B 2L H 8,760,000 37T - 100% AHERIEE
I8 7E o
Foshan UNA The PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100%  Design and
Cultural Gifts sale of
Co., Limited™* garment
accessories
FRILT R a3 AR ¥ 3,000,000 7T - 100% RRETREHE
EmARAR e es
KEE (Jingmen) The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 80%  Manufacture
Garment Accessories (note i) and sale of
Limited zipper
(“KEE Jingmen”)** products
7% (#1F7) BRERC 1 a3 AE# 100,000,000 7T - 80% HENIHE
BRAT] (BH5ED) P9 o

(TFZmFT]) =

*

ERAR/TEIEBERE -
ERAIR/TEABRAEETAT -

These are wholly foreign-owned enterprises in the PRC.

%

These are companies with limited liability in the PRC.

Note (i) The paid-up capital of KEE Jingmen was increased from MizE (i) M20129F9A8 - ASERKR —KIND
RMB10,000,000 to RMB50,000,000 after additional capital ARIDRIFESNEE AR #30,000,000
injection of RMB30,000,000 and RMB10,000,000 (equivalent 7T & A R #10,000,000 ( 18 & 7
to HK$12,237,000) by KEE Guangdong and an external party 12,237,000 78 7T) 1% - F S HIFIE 5
respectively in September 2012. In May 2013, the paid-up R AN f A R ¥ 10,000,000 7T 3%
capital of KEE Jingmen was increased to RMB100,000,000 after Z= AR #50,000,0007T ° 20134
additional capital injection of RMB40,000,000 and RMB 10,000,000 58 BASERR—FKIBARDH
(equivalent to HK$12,530,000) by KEE Guangdong and an #HNEE ARYE40,000,0007T AR
external party respectively. 10,000,000 (1% 7 12,530,000 /&

T & ABHEIPIMNER A INE

1 34 A 100,000,000 7T ©



13 INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY 13 REB A AR (F)
(CONTINUED)

The above amount due from KEE Zippers is unsecured, LtEW R SR ERIE R EER . 2
interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment. The BRERETEERR - ARALEER
Company has no intention to request repayment from KEE M2014F12 A31 B+ EAREK
Zippers within twelve months after 31 December 2014. No SN EERRIE - WA Ll &5
provisions for bad or doubtful debts have been made in TE R R RARHHE -

respect of the above amount.

The following table listed out the information relating to KEE TEREIIANEEHEE TR ERER
Jingmen, the only subsidiary of the Group which has material ([FEfzEM s )M —MBRRRS
non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised financial FIPFTBRAMER « AT 278 7% & K
information presented below represents the amounts before WMERTRAREEHENNSE -

any inter-company elimination.

2014 2013

$°000 $°000

Fr T

NCI percentage FEERERA O 20% 20%
Current assets MENEE 30,463 38,193
Non-current assets ERBEE 115,038 105,899
Current liabilities nEBaE (23,083) (19,916)
Net assets BEFE 122,418 124,176
Carrying amount of NCI R AR R R AR B 24,484 24,835
Loss for the year FANEE (1,333) (739)
Total comprehensive income ZHERNERE (1,758) 2,088
Loss allocated to NCI DI EIEER S A E R (267) (148)
Cash flows from operating activities KERBBIEERE (8,099) (13,035)
Cash flows from investing activities WETRENFTIS fﬁ% mE (11,892) (39,740)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEESMFEERE (532) 66,187
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P e (BRARI - A LENETHE
14 PREPAYMENTS FOR FIXED ASSETS 14 BEEENTASRIE
The balances as at 31 December 2014 mainly represented M2014F12 A3 B2 =285
the prepayments for purchase of plant construction materials B ZFIPTT /MR B &M R T8
under KEE Jingmen. EVTEAI FRIA ©
The balances as at 31 December 2013 mainly represented M2013F12 A3 B2 =255t
the prepayments for purchase of office premise in Hong BUREBBNRAYMERBNOTER
Kong. FRIA o
15 INVENTORIES 15 =78
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Raw materials AR 5,633 4,560
Work in progress & 11,209 10,354
Finished goods BURK A 1,527 2,187
18,369 17,101
An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an HRARIWREEBERARNT
expense and included in the consolidated statement of profit HEAINWET -

or loss is as follows:

The Group
rEH

2014 2013

$°000 $°000

Fr Tt

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENREE 115,395 112,278
Write down of inventories WomiEE 1,182 400
Reversal of write-down of inventories & [EHURTFE (1,067) (751)
115,510 111,927
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15

16

INVENTORIES (CONTINUED)

The write-down of inventories was related to decrease in
the estimated net realisable value of certain slow-moving

inventories.
The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years

was due to an increase in the net realisable value of certain
finished goods with reference to the latest selling price.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

15 75 (&)

BHEMAERETFABREFE
T ERFER D -

RBEFEROFERRYARES
ERHMEBRETHA MO ERF
EIBINATER -

16 EZREMERFE

The Group The Company
rEE RAF]
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
Fr T Frx T
Trade debtors and FEWBRIA I

bills receivable FAVEST 37,622 36,894 - -

Less: allowance for W SRR
doubtful debts (note 16 (b)) (Fii3E 16 (b)) (160) (136) - -
37,462 36,758 = _
Other prepayments HAbTARFIR 669 1,482 = 204
Deposits and other debtors g & E b B W R 3,404 1,796 201 226
41,535 40,036 201 430

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

PrEME S RHEMEWFIE - Bt
—FRRRERER R
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 EZRHMEWRRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(@) AGEING ANALYSIS (a) FRERDHT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing HEAREME REERAH
analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable (which &?DB,%%}E%&{%E@%H&ZEEIE&%
: , , W (5B 5 R 8 UK
are included in trade and other receivables) based B) MEER AT -
on the invoice date and net of allowance for doubtful
debts, is as follows:
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Within 1 month 1{E8 AR 11,619 8,824
1 to 2 months 1-2{&8 A 9,985 10,253
2 to 3 months 2-31& A 6,342 6,202
Over 3 months 838 3 & A 9,516 11,479
37,462 36,758

JEURBR B R B ER B SN EER
HEF30E90 B AEIE - BRAALEEE
EHBRNE— S BENMIE24(a)

Trade debtors and bills receivable are in general due
within 30-90 days from the date of billing. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note
24(a).

138



16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE DEBTORS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss
is written off against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly (see note 1(h)(i)).

16 EZREMEBWRIE(FE)

(b) EWREREKZERE
JRE UK AR T I B M R R R (B B 1R
RABEERN - BRIETEERA
WEREREEN EER
T R E B IR N E KR
B R ER M (F2EME
1(h)(i)) °

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts FARBREZSNOT -
during the year is as follows:
The Group
AEE

2014 2013
$°000 $°000
T T
At 1 January m1A1H 136 164
Exchange adjustments ME 5 B - 4
Impairment loss recognised ERERRERE 327 37
Uncollectible amounts written off  #fi§51~r] g2 & %8 (303) (69)
At 31 December 12 H331H 160 136

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s trade debtors and
bills receivable of HK$160,000 (2013: HK$136,000)
respectively were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables are
mainly related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that the
receivables are not probable to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts
were recognised in full. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

201412 B318 - AEEEUWKE
1B & JE U = # 160,000 7T (2013 ¢
136,000% 7T ) B E AEBIRE - 2R
BEEKFEFZEENENERENS
FEH BERETN HHZSE
WK IE R A A REURE - L - B2 2K
HERBEEREREEG - NEBLARFZ
LEBIT B IR -
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

TRADE DEBTORS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE THAT ARE NOT
IMPAIRED

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills
receivable that are neither individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired are as follows:

16

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BB - FIESRENBTETE)

B2 REAEWRE (&)

(c) REEEYIREREKRRE

BEIEME R IR IE KRR AR EDN
e R TA B R M R B 0 R 0 AT
L

The Group
AEE

2014 2013

$°000 $°000

Fr T

Neither past due nor impaired BEAR@HATARRE 20,805 17,571

Less than 3 months past due B2 316 A 13,569 15,246
More than 3 months but less # BAR B 3 16 A

than 12 months past due B 121 A 3,065 3,909

More than 12 months past due  #1EfiB:E 12 & A 23 32

Amount past due BHEe A 16,657 19,187

37,462 36,758

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Eﬂiﬂiﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬂﬁﬂ’wg% HERZ
EIRRFEENEFER -

EBMERRENREFIAESZ 2B

VEFPER ZEEPRAKENGE
ERBRT - RELR ANEED
EWEEREY  BHERKDBERA
BRWE - WEEEBHREDSERLS
RERRME LR E B



17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 17 GZEMBRRRAVFAEHR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) CURRENT TAX (RECOVERABLE)/PAYABLE IN THE CONSOLIDATED (a) #HEMBARTAKEDE (F UK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION REPRESENTS: |),/ BABERE :
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
T Fr
At 1 January #1818 (126) 1,140
Exchange adjustments ME 5, B (4) 7
Provision for PRC corporate H B FTIS BB A (BT 5E 5(a))
income tax (note 5(a)) 2,524 3,350
Over-provision in respect of B ZEPETH R AT
prior years for PRC corporate FREBERME (FI5E5())
income tax (note 5(a)) (104) (1,278)
Provision for Hong Kong HANEEE (5 5))
Profits Tax (note 5(a)) 33 795
Income tax paid BRI (3,463) (4,140)
At 31 December Mm12H31H8 (1,140) (126)
Represented by: A
The Group
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
T T
Current tax payable BNEARE IR 33 78
Current tax recoverable BIEART 4k [E1 718 (1,173) (204)
(1,140) (126)
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17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 17 GZEMBRRRAVFAEHR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RECOGNISED: (b) ERIAEZEHEEE (BE):
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERE MR N K P ERAIRT
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial MEEE,/(BE)ERBY RF
position and the movements during the year are as NEEBINT -
follows:
Unrealised
profit
arising from PRC dividend
intra-group withholding
transactions tax
elimination (note 5(b)iii))
SERRS PEIRE
Depreciation ~ EXMAZE  Provisions BIO% Total
i pviliis BE  (WRES(b)i) 5t
$'000 $000 $'000 $°000 $000

T Thn ThR TEx TERL

Deferred tax arising from: ~ ELFHRERE :

At1 January 2013 R2013F1718 384 661 970 (1,11) 904
Credited/(charged) to MrhERER

consolidated statement A/ (k)

of profit or loss 160 (115) 45 3y 803
At31December 2013and  H2013E12A31BR

1 January 2014 2014F1518 544 546 1,015 (398) 1,707
Charged to consolidated ~ FABRE R

statement of profit or loss (218) (93) 167 (145) (289)
At 31 December 2014 R2014512 8318 326 453 1,182 (543) 1418
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17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 17 ZEUBRRRANAER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (?I«ﬁ)

(CONTINUED)

(b) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RECOGNISED: (CONTINUED) (b) ERIAEBLHEELEE (BF):

(&)
* These amounts include the provision of * ZESHEBEEPEIEA

withholding tax on profits of the PRC subsidiaries Al B £2013F 12 431 H
amounting to HK$93,000 for the year ended 31 LEF [E 89 ) T8 17358 5 5
December 2013, and the reversal of deferred 93,000/ 7T MR #EH=E
tax liabilities on withholding tax upon distribution 2013F 12 A31H thf‘éﬁj‘
of dividends amounting to HK$806,000 during K AR 18 1 [B] TR H AR IR
the year ended 31 December 2013. Upon the {18 & {5806,000/8 7T ° 15’}
distribution of dividends from PRC subsidiaries, 2 BB B A R IR B
the Group is required to pay income tax. 1& - RNEBEABINFTST o

() RECONCILIATION TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF (c) HEMBARRIRREER :

FINANCIAL POSITION:

The Group
AEE
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Deferred tax asset recognised RERE WA R
in the consolidated statement ZIRIETRIE A B
of financial position 1,961 2,105
Deferred tax liability recognised 4R A BAFSAR R 3R R #ERR
in the consolidated statement LIRERIEEE
of financial position (543) (398)
1,418 1,707
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17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(n), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$4,271,000
(2013: HK$2,715,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity. The tax losses expire in 5 years under current

tax legislation.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

At 31 December 2014, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries amounted to HK$60,963,000 (2013:
HK$52,681,000). Deferred tax liabilities relating to
a portion of these temporary differences amounting
to HK$1,981,000 (2013: HK$1,712,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits
as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

17 %&E
(#&)

(d)

(e)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN - FIESENEBTETE)

B ISR R AR P E B

RERMELHBEE
RIS RN E1(n) - AEEY
KRR RIET UL E1E 4,271,000
#75(20134F : 2,715,000 7T)
B A N AT A5 BA AR B i 765 1 B R
B BSE A OR R FERR TR DA K
LR - RIBRTRIE - B
BRI 5 FEH o

RERNELHERE :

20146128318 - BlAE
= o B BT B A B R s A B
B = £ 460,963,000 % 7T (2013
% 152,681,000 7t ) B

I8 & & A 1,981,0007% 7t (2013
£1,712,000 7T ) © AR K
NENEHIZ SN B A R B B
® o BRERMNERRETERA
RASR DR - E LI EERESD
Ik 5% B R B o ) IRy 2 A 1 JE BB
BEBENERELEHEALSE -



18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

18 BERREEEY

The Group The Company
rEE b N
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr T Fr T
Deposits with banks RITEHATF K 69,046 53,649 = -
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERE 10,087 42,230 84 26
79,133 95,879 84 26
Less: Bank deposits with B BIER A=A
maturity beyond WA b2 $R9T
three months F (41,158)  (14,213) = -
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 37,975 81,666 84 26

As at 31 December 2014, cash and cash equivalents in
the amount of HK$18,336,000 (2013: HK$80,272,000) are
denominated in RMB and are deposited in the PRC in the
ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is
subject to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC

government.

As at 31 December 2014, deposits with banks amounting
to RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to HK$19,014,000) (2013:
nil) have been pledged as security for bank borrowing (note
19). The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the

settlement of relevant bank borrowing.

2014512 A318 » £%8/218,336,000
7571 (2013 4 : 80,272,000/87T) IR E
KESEBWIIAARESE - WHKHE
BEGBRERFHRAPE - ARKEIWIE
HBEBRHEYE  hEELERE
SR BEBARINEEF] o

M2014F 12 A31H » SRITEREAR
#& 15,000,000 7T ( % 719,014,000 7
70) (20134 - ) FER - tERRTT
EENEKE(HE19) - CHEMBITHF
TR EEBBIRITIE B -
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/E\ji%iﬁ% BT#:I (BRBEZTHIN - FIESEUNETTE)
19 BANK BORROWING 19. BITEE
The Group
KEE
2014 2013
$°000 $'000
SEoE Tt
Secured bank loan BEMIRITER 17,000 -
The bank loan was secured by pledged bank deposits of IRITEREBEAREE D EIFIRITHFRA
the Group in the amount of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to R #15,000,000 7T (%7 19,014,000 %
HK$19,014,000). As at 31 December 2014, the secured To)EEIH - R2014E12 8318 B
bank loan bore a floating interest rate of Hong Kong BB TERIRTFEEARITRERL
interbank offered rate with a premium of 2.25% per annum EINT 2.25% F B FIEEHE - WA —
and will be repaid within one year. FREE -
20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 EZREMENSRIE
The Group The Company
rEEH AKATE
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
e Tt SETE Tt
Trade creditors JEHERTE 7,229 6,881 = -
Payroll and staff benefits JERTTE KRB TEH
payable 9,133 8,975 12 -
Accrued expenses JERR 4,376 3,555 242 221
Payables for purchase EEETEEREN 10,272 17,417 = -
of fixed assets RIE
Other taxes payable H b e REIA 226 1,157 = -
Advance from a third party FE=FER 8,873 8,903 = -
Deposits received BliRe 4,437 6,360 = -
Other payables Hoh pE kIR 744 748 — -
45,290 53,996 254 221
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

Advance from a third party represents that interest-free
advance of RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to HK$8,873,000)
received from a state-owned enterprise responsible for
investment projects on behalf of Jingmen local government
during 2012.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade creditors (which are included in trade and other
payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows:

20

B2 REAENKE(E)

FrEME S REMEMNFIA - Bat—
FARANBLEEERERREA -

WREFEENE=ZFTBRARE
7,000,000 7T (8 & 7 8,873,000 % 7T )
BRAREKMMEMBRFAEEIREAEE
MEI B EWE R RS BEK

BEABRSHL REEXRAH &
HRIR (G AR 5 K EA RN FIA) 6
FRéc DM - WAF

The Group
L33

2014 2013

$°000 $°000

T Tt

Within 1 month 118 AR 6,968 5,740
Over 1 month but within 3 months i1 EAEZ3EAR 260 1,109
Over 3 months but within 6 months BiE3fEAR=E6 AN 1 32
7,229 6,881
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21 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS 21

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN - FIESENEBTETE)

BERKER

148

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employee’s relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000
prior to June 2014).

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement scheme. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the scheme at rate
of 10%-14% of the eligible employees’ basic salary. The local
government authority is responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group has no other material obligation for payment
of retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions as
described above.

REBRBEEARS MBS EE
PlAZBEAEBEIEENTNEER
MZEEER Y —HRGIIEAESE
Z([wfEesrEl]) - wEesrEl A —
BB FEATENRTEHIOEMNK
&l - BIBERERE  BEZRERE
B% 8781k E B RBKRAL 5% [T E
R LA A AE R YR A 30,0007 T A F
PR (72201446 AR - PR %&25,00078
JT) e

AREEFENBAREE NERER
RIKFTEIMKE - PEMEARZAR
AEIMR RAERREEELAT S
10% 2 14% 3R o & Ho BT R KB
BrERERKeEEEE -

B bt RN ARBEY EARE
SRR EHEMERESE -



22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolutions passed on 14
December 2010, the Company adopted a share options
scheme (“the Scheme”) whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised to grant options to selected eligible
persons as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group and/or to recruit and retain
high caliber eligible persons and attract human resources

that are valuable to the Group.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in

shares.

(@) SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED UNDER THE SCHEME DURING THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DecemBER 2014
On 22 July 2014, the Company granted 11,600,000
share options under the Scheme to twenty employees
of the Group (including four key management
personnel) for subscribing shares of the Company.

22

BaEEROXATNRS

RIER2010F 12 A 14 BBBARER
BE  ANQRIRMERER B ([ ZE
2B ARREFERERKL
hESEBATREBRE EAE
EHAEEEBNBEEBARE K
HE R/ ABERGESREAERA
TRERSIHAEBMEEEBENAL

BNBERERTHEARNREAR
Al —RREER WREARNDER -

(a) BZE2014F12A31BLFER
BEAERE 2 BRE
R2014%F7H228 » AR AR
BZagEmAEB -+ 2ES
(BE4EFZEBEABS)EY
11,600,000 {7 BE A ##E - DARREE AR
ARG °
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED UNDER THE SCHEME DURING THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for the
share options granted is measured by reference to
the fair value of share options granted. Set out below
are the estimate of such fair value and the related
assumptions based on a binomial lattice model.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BB - FIESRENBTETE)

22 EREEROINNXRE (&)

(a) BE2014F 12831 BLFER

BEe 8RR 2 B ()
BIRER A BERER
RIREERIE PR REH AR
BEN2ERENBERENRAE
FPE - TXHEIIRE AR E
EA B AN EREBERR

2014
20145
Fair value (weighted average) per share 0.171
option at measurement date (HK$)
a8 B e BN 0.171
RAE(NEFHE) GBT)
Share price (HK$) 0.60
M in B1& (B T) 0.60
Exercise price per option (HK$) 0.60
B BRETRE(ET) 0.60
Expected volatility rate 55% per annum
TR E FF55%
Expected dividend yield 4% per annum
TARARR S M BF4%
In-service early exercise behaviour: Option holder will exercise his/her
FRFEANIRBITES) - options when the share price is at

Expected Option life (expressed as
average life used in the
modelling under bionomial lattice model)
Bt 8 (RE —BAREERN
ATERERE TS FHRRTR)

least 265% of the exercise price.
BREREABRKREZEDR
1712 (BH) 265% HY1E R T TR iR
2.4 years
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED UNDER THE SCHEME DURING THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE OF SHARE OPTIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS!

22 HE#@

(a)

FEROXNHXRS (&)

BE2014F12B31BLFER
B8R 2 BRE (F)

BIRERA ERER -

2014
2014 5

Risk-free rate of interest per annum:

BRRFENE

The contractual life of the share options is used as an
input into the model. Expectations of early exercise
are also incorporated into the model. The expected
volatility is based on the Company’s own volatility
since its listing and comparable companies’ volatility in

recent years.

The risk-free rate of interest with expected term shown
above was taken to be the linearly interpolated yields of
the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes as at the grant
date.

Changes in the subjective input assumptions could

materially affect the fair value estimate.

Except for the conditions mentioned above, there were
no other market conditions and service conditions

associated with the share options.

Batch 12: 0.49%
E124t : 0.49%
Batch 13: 0.62%
E134E : 0.62%

BRENS OHRAEZRAN
WA - ZBRA T RIEHYE
REITENEE - FAHKE IR
MARE B HE E AR IR E M
KR FRAI B L 8RR Z K E
Mo

R R T AR £ L )R
BALARNEN B NEBINEES
BRI S -

TR ARBRRZESHITEKR

B ZARE

B Lt iz oh - B A R R A
HHRR R R AR A R A
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E\ji%i&% BT#EI (BREAETHIN - FTESENETTE)
22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 22 ERLEROIGTHRS (E)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED (b) 2014512 A 31 BRBZE
UNDER THE SCHEME As AT 31 DecemBER 2014 ARE As B BRESEZHRAR GG
FOLLOWS: HIWMTE :

Number of Contractual
options life of
granted Exercise options

Date of grant Batch B Vesting conditions price HK$ IBRAE
REAH #X BREA AT{TREMR1E TEE SHHER

Options granted to directors:

RYEF2HBRE

27 May 2011 Batch 1 318,000 The day the 2011 annual 1.39 6 years
results being announced

201MF5H27TH  E1#t 318,000 201 EFFEEERMH A 1.39 6F

27 May 2011 Batch 2 318,000 The day the 2012 annual 1.39 6 years
results being announced

201MF5H27TH  E24t 318,000 2012 FEEERMH A 1.39 6 F

27 May 2011 Batch 3 424,000 The day the 2013 annual 1.39 6 years
results being announced

201MF5H27TH  E3#t 424,000 2013FFEEE LM 2 H 1.39 6 F

27 May 2011 Batch 4 424,000 The day the 2014 annual 1.39 6 years
results being announced

2011F5H27H  F44t 424,000 2014FFEEERMHZA 1.39 6F

27 May 2011 Batch 5 636,000 The day the 2015 annual 1.39 6 years
results being announced

2011 5H27H  F54t 636,000 2015FFEEERM A 1.39 6F

7 December 2012 Batch 6 1,900,000 The day the 2012 annual 0.6 6 years
results being announced

201212 A7H  Fe#t 1,900,000  2012FFEEE N2 H 0.6 6 F
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 22 EnFEERGIXAINRS (E)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED (b) M2014%12 A 31 BREZE
UNDER THE SCHEME As AT 31 DecemBeR 2014 ARE As BB R AET B 2 R R R
FOLLOWS: (CONTINUED) KW : (&)

Number of Contractual
options life of
granted Exercise options

Date of grant Batch Edan Vesting conditions  price HK$ MR
R BEH #ER BREHE AT RERAE THEE AR

Options granted to employees:

RYREEZBIRE

27 May 2011 Batch 1 3,414,000 The day the 2011 annual 1.39 6 years
results being announced

20115827  F14t 3,414,000 201 FFEFEERMHZ A 1.39 6F

27 May 2011 Batch 2 3,414,000 The day the 2012 annual 1.39 6 years
results being announced

20115827 F24t 3,414,000 2012FFFEERM A 1.39 6

27 May 2011 Batch 3 4,552,000 The day the 2013 annual 1.39 6 years
results being announced

2011F5H27H  E3#t 4,552,000 2013 FFEEE A2 H 1.39 6 F

27 May 2011 Batch 4 4,552,000 The day the 2014 annual 1.39 6 years
results being announced

2011F5H27H  F44t 4,552,000 2014 FFEEEQMHZHE 1.39 6F

27 May 2011 Batch 5 6,828,000 The day the 2015 annual 1.39 6 years
results being announced

2011 5H27H  F54t 6,828,000 2015 FFHEEE LM H 1.39 6F

7 December 2012 Batch 7 3,405,000 The day the 2012 annual 0.6 6 years
results being announced

201212 A7H  E7H# 3,405,000 2012 FEEERMH A 0.6 6 F
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 22 RaFERAZIANRES (E)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED (b) 2014512 A 31 BRBZE
UNDER THE SCHEME As AT 31 DecemBER 2014 ARE As BB R ET B 2 R R RS
FOLLOWS: (CONTINUED) KW : (&)

Number of Contractual
options life of
granted Exercise options

Date of grant Batch E-dan Vesting conditions  price HK$ MR
REAH #ER BREHE AT{TRERAE THEE AR

Options granted to employees: (continued)

BETREZBERE : ()

7 December 2012 Batch 8 3,405,000 The day the 2013 annual 0.6 6 years
results being announced

201212 A7H  Fs8it 3,405,000 2013 FFEEE R 2B 0.6 6 F

7 December 2012 Batch 9 4,540,000 The day the 2014 annual 0.6 6 years
results being announced

201212 A7H  Foit 4,540,000 2014 FFEFEEANMH2H 0.6 6

7 December 2012 Batch 10 4,540,000 The day the 2015 annual 0.6 6 years
results being announced

201212 A7H  FE104t 4,540,000 2015FFEHEE N2 H 0.6 6F

7 December 2012 Batch 11 6,810,000 The day the 2016 annual 0.6 6 years
results being announced

201212 478 F114t 6,810,000 2016 FFEEE R 2 B 0.6 6 F

22 July 2014 Batch 12 5,800,000 The day the 2014 annual 0.6 3 years
results being announced

2014F7 A22H #1124t 5,800,000 2014FFEEE QM2 A 0.6 3

22 July 2014 Batch 13 5,800,000 The day the 2015 annual 0.6 3 years
results being announced

2014 7H22H  %13#t 5,800,000 2015FFEEERH A 0.6 3F

Total 61,080,000

HE 61,080,000
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 22 EnFEERGZXAINRS (E)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c) DETAILS OF THE MOVEMENTS OF THE SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED (c) RUEBRESDZFBRIMW
ARE AS FOLLOWS!: T
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
Weighted Weighted
average average

exercise Number of exercise Number of

price options price options
InFEFH BIRE T RE AR
THEE =] TEE A
HK$ ’000 HK$ '000
# I
Outstanding at the RERRITHE 0.88 32,230 0.88 37,920
beginning of the year
Granted during the year ~ FRRH 0.60 11,600 - -
Lapsed during the year ~ FRIEHA 1.39 (1,840) 1.39 (1,960)
0.60 (4,700) 0.60 (3,730)
Outstanding at the end REFEREKITE 0.80 37,290 0.88 32,230
of the year
Exercisable at the end RERATITE 0.95 10,765 0.94 7,831
of the year
The share options outstanding as at 31 December R2014F 12 A31 B KITE
2014 had an exercise price of HK$1.39 or HK$0.60 and BREZITEER1.398TH
the weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.7 0.60/87C * MIEFHFEHRE L
years (2013: 4.0 years). HA2.7F (20134F : 44F) -
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 BEXR - #ERRE
(a) MOVEMENTS IN COMPONENTS OF EQUITY (a) HERFIBH

The reconciliation between the opening and REBEFAEERSBNEVRE
closing balances of each component of the Group’s BRER RN G EmE
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated x o AR AIB AR DR FA
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes N F AR 2 S EEFN AT -

in the Company’s individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:
The Company NN
Share Share Capital Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
e BipRE BARE REER st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr i Fr T i
Balance at 1 January 2013 201351 A1 BRES 4,150 138,096 1,629 1,835 145,710
Total comprehensive income FREENALE
for the year - - - 6,973 6,973
Dividends declared and paid ERRERRE - - - (8,300) (8,300)
Equity settled share-based IAERE BRI
transactions NR5 - - 3423 - 3423
Share options lapsed during the year A& IE - - (378) 378 -
Balance at 31 December 2013 R2013F12 A31H
and 1 January 2014 R2014F1 A1 BRER 4,150 138,096 4,674 886 147,806
Total comprehensive income ERRENNEE
for the year - - - 15,338 15,338
Dividends declared and paid ERRERRE - - - (8,300) (8,300)
Equity settled share-based IEREERNZ NS
transactions - - 2,055 - 2,055
Share options lapsed during the year ~ FR&TMERE - - (435) 435 -
Balance at 31 December 2014 ROOMUE12B3 B 4150 138,09 6,294 8350 156,899
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

23

EX - ekks (&)

DiviDENDS (b) BKE
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the B TAR AR GSRRELFA
Company attributable to the year B S
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
T T
Final dividend proposed after s IR B TR @R 2
the end of the reporting period &1l 2 #ER AR HIRL 2
of HK2 cents per ordinary (2013 4F « 2784l)
share (2013: HK2 cents) 8,300 8,300

The final dividend proposed after 31 December 2014
has not been recognised as a liability as at the end of
reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,

approved and paid during the year.

72014412 A 31 Bi& 2 BUR AR B E,
WERHERRERSAE -

FERN F AR B R s AR B (5 £ — (B
BEENBREERFAZ RS -

2014 2013
$°000 $°000
Frx T
Final dividend in respect of the  Ht_t — (B EFEERER

previous financial year, HAZ RS REBAR B

approved and paid during R 27801 (2013 : 271)

the year, of HK2 cents per

share (2013: HK2 cents) 8,300 8,300
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 BEX - #ERRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) SHARE cAPITAL () B=&
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital (i) JEERBEITRA

2014 and 2013

2014 F K 2013 5
No. of Share
shares capital
RGHEAR ;&N
‘000 $°000
+ Tt
Authorised, EE
Ordinary shares of ERMEELET
HK$0.01 each RS 2,000,000 20,000
Ordinary shares, issued Z#EMR  ©&17T
and fully paid: RHR:
At 1 January and 1A1HN12A31H
31 December 415,000 4,150
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TR FAE AR KR
receive dividends as declared from time to time TREIRORKRS - A #E
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings RARBRNE LZBFER
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally —ENREE A E
with regard to the Group’s residual assets. WRSBREEMS  MEL
BRERRFMAL -
(i) Shares issued under share option scheme (i) MEERETEIFAETZ
ek
No options were exercised during the years B ZE20145F 220135121
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. Further MBI FEITEITEER
details of these options are set out in note 22 to e BBREE—F
financial statements. SHIBE R B S R M5 22
A o
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

SHARE PREMIUM

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as

they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

According to the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association, dividends may be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or
account which can be authorised for this purpose with

the sanction of an ordinary resolution.

STATUTORY RESERVE

Statutory reserve was established in accordance
with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the
articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC. Transfers to the reserve were
approved by the respective board of directors.

KEE Guangdong and KEE Zhejiang, which are wholly
foreign owned enterprises incorporated in the PRC, are
required to transfer at least 10% of its net profit (after
offsetting prior year’s losses), as determined under
the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
general reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital under the PRC Company
Law and the articles of association of these entities.
The transfer to this reserve must be made before

distribution of dividends to the equity shareholders.

23 BX - RERRE (H)

(d)

(e)

WA= E
RIEMSHERRDE(BERT)
fectn i E AR Al 0 B T A R Al AR
R HERBERZZDIKEEZA
& ARRBHENNBEES
BETEEDET -

IRIRAR R B 2 A4 = 12 K40 & 48
8 AR RIAKEBRESRERT
% AR R BRI EME
EEHRE EIRMIRMES

EERE

ETE RRIRIRAARE P BB AR
17 LA R £ Hp B 5 i B SZ B9 AR A 7]
MEARABEIZMARL -
HRAEHERABESSIE -

FMZ2ERNMAZITAESDHE
ARSI BERE - AN
HBEFENBEREELAT
(REBEFESFTRAURROE)
MED10%EHEE —REE R
B EEFHBRESHERETEARQ
BEMZEERMABERDR
MERFMEARE50% - BREEE
ZiE AR PSRRI
AIHETT ©
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

()

(9

STATUTORY RESERVE (CONTINUED)

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good
prior years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into
paid-up capital provided that the balance after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

CAPITAL RESERVE

Capital reserve comprises the following:

- reserves arising prior to and during the
reorganisation of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2010;

- the portion of the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options granted to the
directors and employees of the Company that
has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 1(m)(ii); and

- changes in equity attributable to the shareholders
of the Company arising from contribution from
non-controlling interests for acquisition of

interests in a PRC subsidiary.

EXCHANGE RESERVE

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries with functional currencies
other than HK$. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 1(q).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BB - FIESRENBTETE)

23 BX - RERRE (H)

(e)

()

(9)

EEMEE (E)

A — R E A BERAREF
EEEE(E) - IRA B R
RBA - HEETHRERENG
BRI NEMERH)25% -

EXEE
BAFEBIEAT M -

- EHARTRAEBR20104F

12 A31 B ILFEEARE
ELZHE

- EBTFRrrRE=REEZ

RITEBEARE 2 & I A A
A5t BRI B AR D ZKPT
R g st BUR (R MR
1(m)(ii)) T LA T 58 8 &P
5 R

- EBAREFEREDK

SOLE IR — B R B
DRI A A R FE 2
HEEREED -

B X R
ERREEREEREERAEITA
NI REE B BV B R R TS 3R
RELHMBINEZR - LB
TYRIEMIFE1(q) T S aT UK
FRIP o



23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(h)

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to the equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$152,749,000
(2013: HK$143,656,000). After the end of the reporting
period the directors proposed a final dividend of HK2
cents (2013: HK2 cents) per ordinary share, amounting
to HK$8,300,000 (2013: HK$8,300,000) (note 23(b)).
This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at
the end of the reporting period.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

23 BX - RERRE (H)

(h)

EEN TR R
M20145F12 A31 8 » A9k
FTARABIREBRENFEEZ
¥84152,749,000/%8 7T (20134 :
143,656,000% 7T ) © & = R MW
LHRBEEZTRRAREE
% i B2 1l (20134 ¢
B2 il ) - 38,300,000 7T
(20134 : 8,300,000 7t ) ( B
F23(b)) ° ZRBANHRE AR
KERBEIE »

ErEE
AEEEEEANERBRIR
EASEMSEKEEN W
BB ERK T RE R MRS E
BIARE BIAS B K ARS /
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(i)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt
(which includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings,
and obligation under finance lease, if any), less cash
and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all

components of equity.

During 2014, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2013 was to maintain the adjusted
net debt-to-capital ratio below 20%. The Group’s
debt to asset ratio, being the Group’s total liabilities
over its total assets, at 31 December 2014 was 16%
(2013: 14%). In order to maintain or adjust the ratio,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholder, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BB - FIESRENBTETE)
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, interest rate, liquidity and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(a)

CREDIT RISK

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables are
due within 30-90 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with balances that are past due are usually requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain

collateral from customers.

24 TRIEREERAAE
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in
which the customers operate and therefore certain
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 25%
(2013: 23%) of the total trade receivables were due

from the Group’s five largest customers.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 16.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank borrowing carried at variable rates, which
exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
effective interest rate of the bank borrowing of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 was 2.61% (2013: Nil).

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit after tax for the
year and retained profits by approximately HK$71,000
(2013: Nil). Other components of equity would not be
affected by the changes in interest rates.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BB - FIESRENBTETE)
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

INTEREST RATE RISK (CONTINUED)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the impact on
the Group’s profit after tax for the year and retained
profits that would arise assuming that there is an
annualised impact on interest income and expense
by a change in interest rates. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis for 2013.

LiQuipiTy RISk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investments of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined

levels of authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, if any, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the Group
are carried at amount not materially different from
their contractual undiscounted cash flow as all the
financial liabilities are with maturities within one year
or repayable on demand at the end of the reporting
period.

24 SREREERAAEE)
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(c)
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

LiQuiDITY RISK (CONTINUED)

The contractual undiscounted cash flow and carrying
amount of the short-term bank borrowing as at 31
December 2014 are set out as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BB - FIESRENBTETE)

24 TREMREERAE(E)

(c)

REESER (&)
7201412 A31 8 A4KIT
BIR &R REHRITEENERR
BEHEIMT

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
HK$'000  HK$000
FHE T FAT
Contractual undiscounted BRRITBER SN
cash flow 17,036 -
Carrying amount BRMEE 17,000 -
CURRENCY RISK (d) E#¥Ek
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily AEBEHHNEERBREERE
through sales and bank deposits and which give rise to SHE RERTTFR - 5| B S HL

receivables and cash balances that are denominated in
United States Dollars (“USD”) under KEE Zippers and
KEE Guangdong.

As HKD are pegged to USD, the Group considers the
risk of movements in exchange rates between USD
and HKD to be insignificant.

The Group had RMB denominated bank deposits
amounting to HK$19,021,000 (2013: HK$ 2,000) that
was held by KEE Zippers for which HKS$ is its functional

currency.

B S ER A TR
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L) HASNERFE  M&EA
AIABTLIERINEEETRE



24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

CURRENCY RISK (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general
appreciation/depreciation of 0.5% points in HKS,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s net profit for the year
and retained profits by approximately HK$794,000
(2013: HK$ 83).

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rate had been applied to re-measure
the bank deposits which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign

operations into the Group’s presentation currency.

FAIR VALUES

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

25 COMMITMENTS

(@)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2014 and 2013 not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

24 SRERE

(d)

(e)

25 7RiE

(a)

BEAARE(E)
E¥ER (&)

R E T

M20146 128318 4 5t &
BB TE B2 {E0.5%im AT
FEMFEERFTIE  NEEF
R FI B2 AR BB 5 I ot 48
#1794,000% 7T (2013 4 : 83 %
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LAGUEREDH B RENTE
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=
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The Group
AEE
2014 2013
$°000 $000
Tt T
Contracted for B2ET4 17,728 49,355
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E\ji%iﬁ% BT#EI (BREAETHIN - FTESEENETTE)
25 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 25 #&i¥E (&)
(b) At the end of the reporting period, the total future (b) HIEHAR - BB AIHEEELE
minimum leases payments under non-cancellable HERNRREEES LB
operating leases are payable as follows: N
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
T T
Within 1 year 1FR 4,694 5,119
After 1 year but within 5 years 1F&ERSFR 13,638 4,506
18,332 9,625
26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 26 EABAERIRS
TRANSACTIONS
(a) KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION (a) EEEBAEHH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the FEERAEHM(BIEMT6RT
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s BEINFARRESHREK
directors as disclosed in note 6 and certain of the ME7ABEETFETERH
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 7, is as BMET)mT :
follows:
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
T T
Short-term employee benefits MHIRERA 4,518 4,237
Retirement scheme contribution  EREHEI LK 124 31
Share-based payments LARR 7 32 A< ) 52 H 657 1,084
5,299 5,352
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note F@EEE Al B TAA | (HEE4(b))
4(b)).
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

27

(b)

LEASE ARRANGEMENT

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group
entered into the following material related party
transaction.

On 20 December 2010, the Group entered into an
operating lease in respect of certain plant and buildings
with Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan, the ultimate
controlling parties and directors of the Company.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
rentals paid by the Group under this lease agreement
amounted to HK$4,546,000 (2013: HK$4,506,000).

The above related party transaction constituted
continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required
by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in
section headed “Continuing connected transaction” of
the Report of the Directors.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTIES

At 31 December 2014, the directors consider the immediate

controlling party of the Group to be Nicco Worldwide Inc.,

while the ultimate controlling parties of the Group to be

Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan. Nicco Worldwide Inc. is

incorporated in BVI. This entity does not produce financial

statements available for public use.

26 EXBELRS ()

(b)

HEZH

BB ERE M WE &
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ETRE REFERAD G HEE
ARG SR R EE RIS R85 AT
UEETHE - 522014512 A
MALFE ASERERE
5% B 7 © 3% 4,546,000 75 7T
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27 HERRAERE

EERA N2014F128318HAK
EEEEER T ANicco Worldwide
Inc. - ALK BB SLIERT RIFHE
A RFFHE A © Nicco Worldwide
Inc. EHRBRBE LS ML - %
RATEGRHVBRERTAREA -
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AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s financial condition and results of operations are
sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and estimates
that underlie the preparation of the financial statements.
The Group bases the assumptions and estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumptions
that the Group believes to be reasonable and which form
the basis for making judgements about matters that are not
readily apparent from other sources. On an on-going basis,
management evaluates its estimates. Actual results may
differ from those estimates as facts, circumstances and
conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those
policies and the sensitivity of reported results to changes
in conditions and assumptions are factors to be considered
when reviewing the financial statements. The significant
accounting policies are set forth in note 1. The Group
believes the following critical accounting policies involve
the most significant judgements and estimates used in the
preparation of the financial statements.

(@) IMPAIRMENT
(i)  Non-financial long-term assets
The Group reviews the carrying amounts
of the assets at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. When indication of impairment
is identified, management prepares discounted
future cashflow to assess the differences
between the carrying amount and value in use
and provide for impairment loss. Any change
in the assumption adopted in the cash flow
forecasts would increase or decrease in the
provision of impairment loss and affect the

Group’s net asset value.

Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R MR

28 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

28

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BB - FIESRENBTETE)
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28 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

IMPAIRMENT (CONTINUED)

(i) Receivables
The Group estimates impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability
of the debtors to make the required payments.
The Group bases the estimates on the ageing of
the trade and other receivables balance, credit-
worthiness of the debtors and historical write-
off experience. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs
would be higher than estimated.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after
taking into account the estimated residual value, if
any. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group’s experience with similar assets and taking into
account upgrading and improvement work performed
for anticipated technological changes, and legal or
similar limits on the use of assets. The depreciation and
amortisation expense for future periods is adjusted if

there are significant changes from previous estimates.

INVENTORIES

The Group determines the write-down for
obsolescence of inventories. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the
experience in selling goods of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of change in market
condition.
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28 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d)

INCOME TAXES

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for unused tax losses and deductible temporary
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which they can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed
and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the

HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new

standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31

December 2014 and which have not been adopted in these

financial statements. These include the following which may

be relevant to the Group.

28

29

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BB - FIESRENBTETE)
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

29

ERMEREZE2014F 12
A BLEFEERERZE
Al MEARBREBZUESE
(%)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BT B2 2R
R RS
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle 1 July 2014
EEMBREERI2010F £ 2012 F BB 2 F 2k 20147 A 1H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle 1 July 2014
EREMBREER 2011 FE 2013 F R 2 F 2k 20147 A 1H

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
EEMBREERI2012F £ 2014 F R 2 F 2k

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification
of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation

FREHERE 165 BB G ERF 38 RITE M H T ZZ %

Z/Zf/ﬁ E’]{/ﬂ

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

EEMBREERE 15 HREL ANz

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments(2014)
BB mERERNE W - £ TA (2014 4F)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

1 January 2016
20161 H1H

1 January 2016
20161 A 1H

1 January 2017
20171 H1H

1 January 2018
20181 A 1H

AEEEFEZEERT RN EAES
EEAMELNTE - BRI/
RNZEFEET - B REEDKA
BEHERA M HMRIBRENEATE -
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BB - FIESRENBTETE)

EAMEREE 2014 F12

174

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

In addition, the applicable disclosure requirements of Part
9, “Accounts and Audit”, of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation from the
Company’s first financial year commencing after 3 March
2014 (i.e. the Company’s financial year which began on
1 January 2015). The Group is in the process of making
an assessment of the expected impact of the changes in
the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part 9. So far
it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial statements.

A BLEFEERERZE
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Glossary
Tl

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following terms shall have the following meanings.

“Board”
Ex3-3

“CG Code”
[fEERTAI

“Company”

EAVNCIE

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ 2R AR

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Group”
[A&EE ]

“HK$” and “HK cents”
[T K [

“Hong Kong”
[&E ]

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”
[ BB

means

B

means

means

means

means

=1
B

means

=1
B

means

tcl

means

B

means

B

BRX &SRB
BERNTRE :

EAFHA - THIFE

the Board of Directors
=

code on corporate governance practices as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules
AR RIMT SR 14 PR E B RE AR TR

KEE Holdings Company Limited, an exempted company
incorporated with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman
Islands on 6 July 2010, the Shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

FAZERBMRAF - R2010F7 A6 AIRIBERAE S AEZMX
Y REHRRERAR - ERODNEBBA IR T

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and, in the
context of the Company, means Nicco, Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu
Xinan
EALTRAUMBTIFZBRERRARAXEME 18
Nicco - #F#5 5 5% & RFFihmkt

the Director(s) of the Company
KREIES
the Company and its subsidiaries

RRRREMBAT

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong
BEEEEE BTN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
hEEESRITTHE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBBER AR RDT]
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Glossary
Il

“KEE Guangdong”

[F5ER]

“Listing Rules”

[ AR A

“Main Board”

[ER]

“Nicco”

[Nicco |

“OEM”
[OEM]

“PRC” or “China”

[P E

“Prospectus”

[FARER]
“‘RMB”
AR ]
“SAP system”
[SAP %47t |

“Share(s)”

[ A7
“Shareholder(s)”
[PER

176

means

means

means

=1
B

means

means

=1
B

means

=1
B

means

means

=1
B

means

=1
B

M5 (ER) RERMGAERAF(KEE (Guangdong) Garment
Accessories Limited), a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 21 March 2005 and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

% (BR)RERMGERAEF - 7200543 A21 BERBIRKL
WERAR  RAAGBEZEHEEGNELR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange
B S LW ARR

the stock market operated by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
which excludes the Growth Enterprise Market and the options
market

HEBHRXMEENRENS - TEEIRR L AETS

Nicco Worldwide Inc., a limited liability company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands on 3 May 2004, being 49.75% owned by
Mr. Xu Xipeng, 49.75% owned by Mr. Xu Xinan and 0.5% owned
by Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert as at the date of this report, and
a Controlling Shareholder

Nicco Worldwide Inc. ' /420045 A3 A EABR LS =
MRSz AR AR (RAIRE HHI49.75% BFTHIE L =% HF -

49.75% HEFH AL EHB R 0.5% HEVEXTEER) - WRiE
PR AR ER

original equipment manufacturer or manufacturing

R R GE (7))

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this
report, Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of
the PRC and Taiwan

REARKNME  $AREMS - TEESDS - REDRFIR
THERAE

the Company’s prospectus dated 31 December 2010
ARAHEAE2010F 12 A 31 HHAKRER

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

HEVETE R ARK

an enterprise resources planning system development by SAP
AG of Germany and its affiliated companies
H{EE SAP AG R A B A RIHENEEERREZL

share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
AR BIRAFR GIREEO0.01 8T 2 KD

shareholder(s) of the Company
RRARRER
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